
Page 1 of 2 
For Public- View the meeting live:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81376497949?pwd=bS9BNjlGeGZKdHVIVmtHVFZ5UFdLdz09 

Meeting ID: 813 7649 7949 Passcode: 694835  

Listen by phone: (253) 215 8782  

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 

It is Link Transit’s policy to assure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or sex, as 

provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 

otherwise discriminated against under any federally funded programs and activities.  All meeting sites are accessible 

to persons with disabilities.  Accommodations for people with disabilities can be arranged with advance notice.  Any 

person, who wishes to obtain more information, or, who believes his/her Title VI protection has been violated, may file 

a complaint with Link Transit’s Title VI Coordinator at 509-664-7600. 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
October 21, 2025 | 3:00 PM 
Columbia Station 3rd Floor 

300 South Columbia Street 
Presented By Suggested Disposition 

1. CALL TO ORDER Chair 
Loyd Smith 

Action 

2. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
2a. High Five Award: Joe Rodriguez
2b. High Five Award: Josh Willey

Nick Covey Recognition 

3. WORKSHOP SESSION  ̶  Proposed 2026 Budget Justin Brockwell 
Don Billen 
Nick Covey 

Information/Discussion 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT
Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person.

Open “Call”: Information 

5. CONSENT AGENDA Board Clerk Action 

5.1 Minutes of the September 16, 2025 Board Meeting

5.2 Accounts Payable Vouchers from
September 1-30, 2025 

5.3 Payroll Vouchers from September 1-30, 2025 

6. BOARD ADMINISTRATION & COMMUNICATIONS

6.1 CEO Report Nick Covey Information 

6.2 Annual CEO Evaluation Process: Distribution of 
evaluation materials 

Board Clerk Information 

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81376497949?pwd=bS9BNjlGeGZKdHVIVmtHVFZ5UFdLdz09


Page 2 of 2  

 

For Public- View the meeting live:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81376497949?pwd=bS9BNjlGeGZKdHVIVmtHVFZ5UFdLdz09 

Meeting ID: 813 7649 7949 Passcode: 694835  

Listen by phone: (253) 215 8782  

 
 
 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 

It is Link Transit’s policy to assure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or sex, as 

provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 

otherwise discriminated against under any federally funded programs and activities.  All meeting sites are accessible 

to persons with disabilities.  Accommodations for people with disabilities can be arranged with advance notice.  Any 

person, who wishes to obtain more information, or, who believes his/her Title VI protection has been violated, may file 

a complaint with Link Transit’s Title VI Coordinator at 509-664-7600. 

 

 

7. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 

  

 7.1 Commercial Tire Contract Extension 
 

Samantha Miller Action 

 7.2 Resolution 2025-20, Interlocal Agreement with 
Chelan County for use of Columbia Station office 
space/facilitation of cart distribution program 

 

Samantha Action 

 7.3 Bus Garage Contingency Funds Samantha Action 
 

 7.4 Purchase of four 40-foot Electric Buses and 5 ABB 
Chargers from BYD/RIDE 

 

Samantha Action 

 7.5 Vehicle Surplus 
 

Ed Archer Action 

 7.6 Hay Canyon Purchase  Nick Action 
 

 7.7 Resolution 2025-21: Link Transit Safety Plan Update 
 

Shawn Larson Action 

8. STAFF REPORTS 
 

 Information 

 8.1 Surplus Van Grant Program Update Chris Clark 
 

Information 

 8.2 Monthly Financial Report 
 
 

Paden Osterlund  

 8.3 Scorecards Gabby Walker  

    

9. MEETING ADJOURNMENT Chair Smith  

    

10. CLOSED SESSION No action will be taken 
 

Chair Smith Discussion 

 

2

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81376497949?pwd=bS9BNjlGeGZKdHVIVmtHVFZ5UFdLdz09


1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
October 21, 2025  Board Meeting 

STAFF REPORT SUMMARY

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors   

FROM: Nick Covey 

SUBJECT: Link Transit High Five Awards – Joe Rodriguez and Josh Willey 

Issue / Purpose 

Link Transit High Five awards recognize an employee (or team of employees) for performing an 
outstanding service or achievement in leadership, safety, customer service, effort, innovation, 
teamwork, or efficiency improvement. Outstanding achievement is defined as an act or action that has 
yielded a substantial and obvious benefit to Link Transit and/or its guests. 

Background 

See attached nomination forms. 

Anticipated Follow-up 
In recognition of the High Five Award, employees receive a gift card to a fine dining establishment of 
their choice. 

Attachments 
Nomination forms 

3



4



5



WORKSHOP SESSION 
October 21, 2025

A workshop session will be held as part of the 
Regular monthly business meeting of the Link Transit 

Board of Directors. 

Review Proposed Link Transit 2026 Budget 

Reference Documents: 
** 2026 Budget Summary Documents 

6



7



8



9



10



11



PROPOSED 
2026 OPERATING & CAPITAL 
BUDGET

Presented to Link Transit’s Finance Committee

October 9, 2025

12



2

2026 Planned Expanded Service

2025 Actual 2026 Change in %

Service Hrs Service Hrs Service Hours Change

Fixed Route 136,100 145,000 8,900 6.5%

Demand Response 54,800 63,000 8,200 15.0%

Total 190,900 208,000 17,100 9.0%

13



3

2026 Operating Budget Revenue Overview

▪Sales Tax – 5.5% increase over 2025 YE projection $32,631,150

▪Grants $  8,522,841

▪Fares – Rideshare $       85,000

▪Other $     822,000

Total $42,060,991 or 8.8%

14



4

2026 Operating Budget Proposal Overview

▪Goal of 5.5% increase or less (excluding service expansion expenses)

▪Assumptions:

▪Wage increases:

▪ 2.5% GWI for Bargaining Unit 

▪ Proposed 2.5% GWI for non-Bargaining Unit staff

▪ Benefit increases:

▪ Medical Insurance = 5% (placeholder)

15



5

2026 Budgetary Needs for Expanded Service 

▪15 additional FTEs (12 Coach Operators)

▪Contracted Services

▪Materials/Supplies – Fuel, Tires, Maintenance Supplies

▪Utilities – Facilities Expansion, Electric Bus Charging

▪Property/Liability Insurance – More Miles, Property, Employees

16



6

Service Expansion Expenses – Additional FTEs

▪2025 Board approved: 

▪ Additional Custodian

▪2026 Budget

▪ Additional Training Coordinator

▪ Additional Maintenance Technician

▪ 12 additional Coach Operators 

Custodian 82,000$          

Training Coordinator 123,000          

Maintenance Technician 104,000          

12 Coach Operators 1,265,000        

1,574,000$      

17



7

Service Expansion Expenses – Services

Community Van Program Coordinator Stipend 26,000$          

Drug & Alcohol/Pre-employment Testing 20,000            

46,000$          

18



8

Service Expansion Expenses – Material/Supplies

Diesel 50,000$          

Gas 25,000            

Rideshare Gas 20,000            

Revenue Vehicle Maintenance 125,000          

Tires 75,000            

295,000$         

19



9

Service Expansion Expenses – Utilities

Bus Garage Utilities 20,000$          

Electricity - Bus Charging 77,000            

97,000$          

20



10

Service Expansion Expenses – P&L Insurance

P&L Insurance 111,000$         

111,000$         

21



11

Service Expansion Expenses – Purchased 
Transportation

LCCH Service 20,000$          

20,000$          

22



12

Total Service Expansion Expenses

Additional FTEs 1,574,000$    

Services 46,000         

Materials/Supplies 295,000       

Utilities 97,000         

P&L Insurance 111,000       

Purchased Transportation 20,000         

Total 2,143,000$    

23



13

Notable Non-Expansion Expenses

Part-time Dispatcher (Stop-gap) 39,000$          

CEO Recruitment 20,000            

Salary Structure Review 15,000            

Leadership Training Consultant 25,000            

Board Member Travel - APTA Expo 20,000            

On-board Survey 30,000            

APTA Paratransit Peer Review 50,000            

TAM Plan Consultant 50,000            

Security Expense - Police Presence at Col Stn 227,000          

Bus Stop ADA Compliance Improvements 200,000          

   Total 676,000$         

24



14

Proposed Operating Budget 

▪ Total 2025 Operating Budget $29,770,593

▪ Proposed 2026 Operating Budget $33,565,203

▪ Budget to Budget Increase $  3,794,610 or 12.7%

▪2026 Expansion Expenses $  2,143,000

▪ Budget to Budget Increase less Expansion Expenses $  1,651,610 or 5.5%

25



15

Capital Budget Proposal

▪Total 2026 Capital Budget Proposal $ 15,451,385

▪Carry over $   9,502,260

▪Facility Maintenance Projects $   1,570,000

▪Vehicles & Equipment $   4,379,125

▪ Less Grants $  (6,077,606) 

▪Total Local Funds $   9,373,779

26



16

Transfers to Reserves

▪Contingency Reserve $      500,000

▪Vehicle Reserve $   3,500,000

▪Facility Reserve $   3,500,000

▪Sales Tax Refund Reserve (close) $  (1,000,000)

▪Total Transfers $   6,500,000

27



17

Financial Summaries

▪2026 Operating Revenue Summary

▪2026 Operating Budget Summary

▪2026 Operating Expenses by Category

▪2026 Capital Budget

▪2025-2035 10 Year Cash-flow Projection

28



29



Strategic Plan Update
Board of Directors
October 17, 2025

30



Proposed Strategic Priorities

1. Expand and optimize services
2. Modernize facilities and infrastructure
3. Improve regional connectivity
4. Ensure a safe and secure transit environment
5. Modernize technology
6. Improve customer experience

31



Planning context

• Vision 2020 nearing 
completion

• Region continues to grow

Regional population growth

Source: CDTC

32



Finishing Vision 2020

• Rural service
• Evaluate later service
• Some park-and-ride and 

stop improvement projects

33



Responding to Changing Growth Patterns

• More multi-family housing
• Potential expansion of urban 

growth area
Development trends: Half of new housing is multi-family

34



Columbia 
Station

Olds 
Station

Cashmere
Entiat

East 
Wenat-

chee

Waterville

Grant 
Road

Rock 
Island

South 
Wenatchee

Malaga

Western

North 
Wenatchee

Today’s Network
ChelanLeavenworth

Sunnyslope

30 min
15 min

Manson

Urban Frequency

>60 min
30-60 min

Regional Frequency

= DART

35



Columbia 
Station

Olds 
Station

Cashmere
Entiat

East 
Wenat-

chee

Waterville

Grant 
Road

Rock 
Island

South 
Wenatchee

Malaga

Western

North 
Wenatchee

2035 Network
ChelanLeavenworth

Sunnyslope

30 min
15 min

Manson

Urban Frequency

>60 min
30-60 min

Regional Frequency

= DART

36



Meeting Demand for More Weekend and 
Evening Service

• Weekend urban route hours 
are limited to 8-10 hours but 
productivity is high

• High ridership regional and 
urban routes are productive 
on the last two trips of the 
day

Productivity by Day of Week

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

Weekday Saturday Sunday

Boardings/hour

37



Urban Hours of Service:  Today

4am 5am 6am 7am 8am 9am 10a
m

11a
m

12p
m

1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 6pm 7pm 8pm 9pm 10p
m

11p
m

12a
m

Weekday

Saturday

Sunday

38



Urban Hours of Service: 2035

4am 5am 6am 7am 8am 9am 10a
m

11a
m

12p
m

1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 6pm 7pm 8pm 9pm 10p
m

11p
m

12a
m

Weekday

Saturday

Sunday

Trips could be added to routes where ridership data indicates 
demand for earlier and/or later service

39



Regional Hours of Service:  Today

4am 5am 6am 7am 8am 9am 10a
m

11a
m

12p
m

1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 6pm 7pm 8pm 9pm 10p
m

11p
m

12a
m

Weekday

Saturday

Sunday

40



Regional Hours of Service:  2035

4am 5am 6am 7am 8am 9am 10a
m

11a
m

12p
m

1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 6pm 7pm 8pm 9pm 10p
m

11p
m

12a
m

Weekday

Saturday

Sunday

Trips could be added to routes where ridership data indicates 
demand for earlier and/or later service

41



Estimated Fixed & Deviated Route Service 
Hours 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

200,000

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035

Annual Service Hours – 2.5% growth per year

One-third more service

42



Managing Rapid LinkPlus Growth

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

140%

160%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Cumulative Growth Rates for Average Weekday Service

Fixed + Deviated Route Paratransit

• Demand response growing 
twice as fast as fixed route 
service demand

• Agency needs a sustainable 
growth trajectory to ensure 
service is there for those who 
need it

• LinkPlus peer review planned

43



Estimated Demand Response Resources

• Critical community service
• Peer review to examine high rate of growth 

and options to ensure long-term 
sustainibility

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035

Annual Service Hours – 6% growth per year 

Projected 75%+ increase in service

44



Looking Ahead
• November ‘25– Board considers adopting strategic priorities
• Q1-Q3 ‘26 - Planning studies and public outreach

• LinkPlus peer review
• Park-and-ride demand study
• Pilot new rural service

• Public outreach regarding community vans, zone service, and other models for low 
density rural areas

• Service network plan – frequency, hours, service areas
• Begin to develop route specific detail based on public input

• August ‘26 - Board considers annual Transit Development Plan

45



46



CONSENT AGENDA 
October 21, 2025 

1) September 16, 2025 meeting minutes
2) Accounts Payable Warrants September 1-30, 2025
3) Payroll Warrants from September 1-30, 2025

All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been 
distributed to the Board for reading and study. They are 
routine and are enacted by one motion of the Board with 
no separate discussion. If separate discussion is desired, 
that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
placed on the Regular Agenda by request. 

47



Link Transit Board Meeting September 15, 2025 Page 1 of 5 

MINUTES 
LINK TRANSIT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

September 16, 2025 
3:00 p.m. 
Columbia Station 3rd Floor, 300 South Columbia Street, Wenatchee, WA 

ATTENDANCE 
Board members attending in person: Chair Loyd Smith, Randy Agnew, Matthew Hepner, Jim 
Fletcher, Erin McCardle, Travis Hornby, Paul Downs, Shon Smith 

Absent / Excused: Marc Straub, Anne Hessburg, Renee Swearingen, Kevin Overbay 

Link Transit Staff: Nick Covey, Don Billen, Ed Archer, Justin Brockwell, Andy Farias, 
Samantha Miller, Selina Danko, Gabby Walker, Paden Osterlund, Eric West, Julie Shipman, 
Jennifer Dolge, Jose Cuevas 

Legal Counsel:  Erin McCool 

Members of the public: Ramon Cuevas, Eloisa Cuevas, Angel Cuevas, Adriana Cuevas. 

1. CALL TO ORDER/APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Chair Loyd Smith called the meeting to order at 3 p.m.  A quorum was established with
eight board members present at that time.

Board Action: 
Shon Smith moved to approve the agenda with an amendment to add an executive 
session to discuss potential litigation to occur as item 4.5 following the scheduled 
closed session. 
Jim Fletcher seconded the motion. 

VOTE: All in favor with eight voting board members present for this vote. 
Motion Carried unanimously 

2. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION: Star Performer Jose Cuevas
CEO Nick Covey reported that Jose Cuevas was receiving a High Five award for
stopping his bus to assist a two-year-old who had wandered away from home. Cuevas
spotted the toddler during his route and kept the child safe until the child’s parent came
to get him.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

No members of the public offered comment.

(This section intentionally left blank) 

48



 

Link Transit Board Meeting September 15, 2025 Page 2 of 5 

4. CLOSED SESSION: Labor Matters 
 
Board Action: 

Erin McCardle moved to go into closed session for 20 minutes to discuss labor 
matters. 
Shon Smith seconded the motion. 
 

VOTE:  All in favor with eight voting board members present for this vote. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
The Board began the closed session at 3:05 p.m. and resumed regular session at 3:25 
p.m.  
No Action was taken. 
 
4.5 EXECUTIVE SESSION: Potential Litigation 
 
Board Action: 

Randy Agnew moved to go into executive session for 5 minutes to discuss 
potential litigation. 
Jim Fletcher seconded the motion. 
 

VOTE:  All in favor with eight voting board members present for this vote. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
The Board began the executive session at 3:28 p.m. and resumed regular session at 3:33 
p.m.  
 
No Action was taken. 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA  

The following Consent Agenda items were submitted for approval: 
 5.1   Minutes of the August 19, 2025 board meeting 
 5.2   Accounts Payable Vouchers from August 1-31, totaling $982,259.88 
 5.3   Payroll Vouchers from August 1-31, totaling $997,959.71 
 
Board Action: 
There were no requests for corrections or changes to any of the Consent Agenda items. 

Erin McCardle moved to approve all Consent Agenda business items as 
presented. 
Jim Fletcher seconded the motion. 
 

VOTE:  All in favor with eight voting board members present for this vote. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
6. BOARD ADMINISTRATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 6.1 CEO Report 
 Nick Covey provided an overview of Link Transit’s workplan and the agency’s 

progress in achieving several established goals and objectives. 
 
 

49



 

Link Transit Board Meeting September 15, 2025 Page 3 of 5 

 
7. Discussion/Action Items 
 

7.1   Resolution 2025-19 Rescinding Break-Through Benefits Resolution 
Contract and procurement specialist Samantha Miller recommended the Board 
rescind Resolution 2008-17 as there is no supporting evidence that the Section 125 
Cafeteria Plan must be governed by resolution. Rescinding the resolution gives staff 
the authority, consistent with Procurement Policy thresholds, to internally manage 
this process. 

 
Board Action: 

Travis Hornby moved to approve Resolution 2025-19, rescinding Resolution 2008-
17, granting staff the authority to manage Section 125 Cafeteria Plan in 
accordance with procurement policy thresholds. 
 
Randy Agnew seconded the motion. 
 

VOTE:  All in favor with eight voting board members present for this vote. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
7.2   Go USA Contract Extension 

Link Transit’s contract for driver and operations staff uniforms with Go USA expires 
Dec. 31, 2025. Staff recommended the board authorize the Link Transit CEO to 
exercise the two-year extension to the contract. 

 
Board Action: 

Erin McCardle moved to authorize Link Transit’s CEO to exercise the two-year 
extension option with Go USA, Inc. for January 1, 2026 through December 31, 
2027. 
Randy Agnew seconded the motion. 
 

VOTE:  All in favor with eight voting board members present for this vote. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
7.3   Resolution 2025-20 interlocal with the Washington State Department of 

Transportation: Easy Street Park-and-Ride 
CEO Nick Covey recommended the Board approve the agreement with the 
Washington State Department of Transportation to complete maintenance at the 
Easy Street Park-and-Ride location. The agreement would allow Link Transit to pay 
WSDOT for the work while the two agencies craft a long-term agreement for the 
management and upkeep of the park-and-ride. 
 

 
Board Action: 

Jim Fletcher moved to table this item to allow staff time to work with legal counsel 
to gather additional information. 
Travis Hornby seconded the motion. 
 

VOTE:  All in favor with eight voting board members present for this vote. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

50



 

Link Transit Board Meeting September 15, 2025 Page 4 of 5 

 
 
8. Staff Reports       
 
 8.1 Financial Report 
  

Monthly Financial Report for August 2025 
 
Background Information:   
   
2025 sales tax   

♦ August 2025 sales tax (earned in the month of June 2025) $ 2,718,172 

♦ Over budgeted amount for the month by 3.5% $ 92,352 

♦ YTD sales tax collection $ 14,248,967 
♦ YTD budget amount $ 13,472,109 
♦ Over YTD budgeted amount by 5.8% $ 776,858 
♦ Last year’s YTD sales tax amount $ 13,132,060 
♦ Over last year’s YTD sales tax amount by 8.5% $ 1,116,907 

   

2025 Operating Budget-to-Actual   

♦ Budget year elapsed = 67% $ 19,847,062 

♦ Operating budget spent = 65% $ 19,373,758 

♦ <Over> Under Budgeted Amount $ 473,304 

   

2025 Capital   

♦ Bus Garage Project – RH2 Engineering $ 13,056 

♦  Bus Garage Project – Rimmer & Roeter $ 144,150 
♦  Sanders Street Bus Stop – RH2 Engineering $ 6,236 
♦  Turbo Images – Bus wraps for 30’ BYDs $ 13,200 
   
Cash Accounts   

♦ Cash with Treasurer – 2025 under 2024 $ (146,852) 

♦ Investments – 2025 over 2024 $ 2,986,275 

♦ Contingencies Reserve – 2025 over 2024 $ 516,667 

♦ Vehicle Reserves – 2025 over 2024 $ 352,849 

♦ FTA Vehicle Reserves – 2025 under 2024 $ (49,309) 

♦ Facility/Equipment Reserves – 2025 under 2024 $ (8,861,289) 

♦ Sales Tax Refund Reserve – 2025 under 2024 $ -_ 

   

  
8.2 Scorecards 
Operations Manager Gabby Walker reviewed the scorecards with the Board providing an 
overview of how Link Transit performed during the past month, which is reflective of how 
the agency is meeting its annual performance goals that were developed through the 
annual budgeting process and formally adopted by the Board. 

 
9. MEETING ADJOURNMENT 

All business listed on the agenda had been addressed and with no further business to 
conduct, Chair Smith adjourned the meeting at 4:05 p.m. 

 
Minutes Submitted by        

Selina Danko, Clerk of the Board 

51



Financial Reports
September 1-30, 2025 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS 
Accounts payable total: $1,691,666.75 

Check Numbers: 
116046-116133; 116135-116233 
(Including any voided checks) 

September 1-30, 2025 

PAYROLL WARRANTS & DIRECT DEPOSIT 
Payroll total: $956,552.94 

ACH & Check Numbers 116037-116045; 116134 

52



September 2025 Warrant Registers

Attached for your consideration are the Warrant Registers 
and Payroll Registers for September 2025

Significant non-monthly and non-standard costs include:

Amount
Warrant 
Number

Description

$14,155.86 116093 Halverson's Auto Body - Accident Repair

$10,816.00 116115 Seattle's Finest - Police Presence

$10,612.00 116157 Howell at the Moon - Marketing Video Production

$13,659.79 116187 Transpo - TDP & Strategic Plan Development

$30,535.81 116192 Axe Fire & Security - Fire System Upgrade

$29,927.12 116213 RH2 Engineering - Bus Garage

$768,228.35 116228 Model 1 Commercial - 6 Paratransit Cutaways

2700 Euclid Avenue.  Wenatchee WA 98801  509.662.1155  FAX 509.664-4095  www.linktransit.com

53



September 30, 2025
Summary of 

Accounts Payable Warrants
Date of Payroll Warrants Check 
Check PR-Direct Deposit Number Amount

September 5, 2025 Payroll Warrants 116037 - 116045, ACH 485,681.66          
September 8 - 11, 2025 Warrants Payable 116046 - 116133 633,517.43          
September 19, 2025 Payroll Warrants 116134, ACH 470,871.28          
September 22 -29, 2025 Warrants Payable 116135 -116233 1,058,149.32       

2,648,219.69$     

54



Payroll Check Register
09/05/2025Check Date:

Check NoEmployee No Department Name Net Pay Ach Net Pay

00116037206 50 JEFF BALAURO $1,079.18 $0.00

00116038219 10 BOBBY BEASON $825.83 $0.00

00116039263 10 ASHLEY D BRANDFAS $615.37 $0.00

00116040384 10 GABRIEL J CUEVAS $348.50 $0.00

00116041598 10 MIGUEL FARIAS $864.58 $0.00

00116042704 10 THERON A GARCIA $180.68 $0.00

00116043745 10 ELIZABETH GUZMAN $164.20 $0.00

001160441562 10 TOTO O'REILLY $148.76 $0.00

001160452065 10 ROBERTO TORRES $906.38 $0.00

NoCheck105 10 WESLEY H ABBEY $0.00 $2,721.97

NoCheck109 10 RICHARD P ALBERT $0.00 $2,400.20

NoCheck147 10 JEFFREY ALLSHOUSE $0.00 $308.96

NoCheck151 10 TYLER ALLSTOT $0.00 $1,705.61

NoCheck138 10 BULMARO AMBROCIO HERRERA $0.00 $1,883.11

NoCheck139 50 OMAR AMBROCIO VASQUEZ $0.00 $2,559.65

NoCheck155 50 ED ARCHER $0.00 $5,883.99

NoCheck155 50 ED ARCHER $0.00 $3,998.21

NoCheck159 11 DOMINIC ASHMORE $0.00 $1,658.20

NoCheck161 16 MIKE ASPEN $0.00 $2,014.75

NoCheck161 16 MIKE ASPEN $0.00 $2,196.21

NoCheck162 11 JACOB AUSTIN $0.00 $3,009.55

NoCheck206 50 JEFF BALAURO $0.00 $3,198.87

NoCheck201 49 SHJON S BALAURO $0.00 $1,557.76

NoCheck203 10 LORELEI BARNES $0.00 $2,140.61

NoCheck140 45 YERANIA M BARRERA-AGUILAR $0.00 $1,665.13

NoCheck214 11 PEDRO A BARRERA-BLANCO $0.00 $2,501.00

NoCheck219 10 BOBBY BEASON $0.00 $2,777.10

NoCheck234 10 SHAMYIA M BECERRA $0.00 $2,519.59

NoCheck233 10 STEVEN C BECK $0.00 $1,974.06

NoCheck232 10 MICHAEL BELL $0.00 $3,230.52

NoCheck235 10 JONATHAN BELLO $0.00 $826.00

NoCheck236 30 KIMBERLY BELT $0.00 $1,851.81

NoCheck237 10 LUIS R BELTRAN $0.00 $2,290.59

NoCheck224 11 JESSICA R BENNETT $0.00 $2,696.32

NoCheck241 40 DONALD BILLEN $0.00 $3,712.31

NoCheck243 16 JULIE A BILLER $0.00 $2,379.56

NoCheck228 10 JOSE BLANCO $0.00 $2,015.83

NoCheck258 10 GRANT BOWEN-PICARD $0.00 $2,404.87

NoCheck278 10 JAMES P BRADY $0.00 $597.22

NoCheck278 10 JAMES P BRADY $0.00 $699.19

NoCheck263 10 ASHLEY D BRANDFAS $0.00 $3,022.61

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 1 of 5

55



Check NoEmployee No Department Name Net Pay Ach Net Pay

NoCheck269 10 THOMAS E BRAUN $0.00 $2,058.95

NoCheck272 30 JUSTIN C BROCKWELL $0.00 $1,817.58

NoCheck218 10 SCOTT P BROWN $0.00 $2,328.40

NoCheck271 10 TONYA R BROWNING $0.00 $3,088.82

NoCheck1979 45 ADINA J BRUKETTA $0.00 $2,127.91

NoCheck279 10 ASTRID O BULL $0.00 $2,394.66

NoCheck223 10 PATRICK B BURNS $0.00 $1,808.71

NoCheck296 45 SHAAID BUSTOS SALGADO $0.00 $1,936.16

NoCheck312 10 THOMAS T CAMPBELL $0.00 $1,850.50

NoCheck309 10 JESUS CAPI $0.00 $1,790.76

NoCheck310 11 LEONARD J CARUSO $0.00 $2,914.97

NoCheck306 10 JUAN CASTRO $0.00 $2,249.19

NoCheck328 40 ALYSSA L CHAMBERLAIN $0.00 $2,118.17

NoCheck332 10 JOHN J CHAMBERS $0.00 $2,230.73

NoCheck331 11 TRISHA A CHANG $0.00 $2,818.98

NoCheck344 10 CHRISTOPHER R CLARK $0.00 $2,128.28

NoCheck352 16 KRISTY E COCKRUM $0.00 $2,492.78

NoCheck365 20 NICK COVEY $0.00 $4,794.93

NoCheck366 11 RAMON D COX $0.00 $3,064.74

NoCheck368 10 GARY L CRANWELL $0.00 $1,215.01

NoCheck381 50 AARON R CRUTCHER $0.00 $3,019.78

NoCheck384 10 GABRIEL J CUEVAS $0.00 $2,371.70

NoCheck386 10 JOSE L CUEVAS $0.00 $3,057.26

NoCheck406 10 BRANDON E DANIEL $0.00 $2,031.51

NoCheck409 20 SELINA I DANKO $0.00 $2,271.40

NoCheck425 11 JEFF A DAY $0.00 $3,494.01

NoCheck454 10 DIANA P DENHAM $0.00 $2,160.20

NoCheck465 10 GARY A DOERSCHLAG $0.00 $2,153.77

NoCheck467 45 JENNIFER M DOLGE $0.00 $3,779.02

NoCheck487 10 JOHN G DUFRANE $0.00 $1,515.30

NoCheck485 10 STEPHANIE L DURRANT $0.00 $1,877.03

NoCheck502 16 JOSHUA J EMMONS $0.00 $1,833.60

NoCheck1428 10 TYLER-ANNE M EMMONS $0.00 $1,815.33

NoCheck509 10 SCOTT P ENGLISH $0.00 $1,960.92

NoCheck575 50 JESUS H ESPINOZA $0.00 $2,175.84

NoCheck577 10 RODOLFO ESPINOZA $0.00 $1,899.38

NoCheck577 10 RODOLFO ESPINOZA $0.00 $171.46

NoCheck576 50 ANIVAN ESTRADA $0.00 $1,925.67

NoCheck581 16 ROBERT L EVERETT $0.00 $2,427.97

NoCheck605 10 DOMINIC M FABIAN $0.00 $2,632.24

NoCheck597 31 ANDRES G FARIAS $0.00 $2,604.84

NoCheck598 10 MIGUEL FARIAS $0.00 $2,335.13

NoCheck608 10 ROBERT W FERGUSON $0.00 $1,522.18

NoCheck620 31 DYLAN J FIORINI $0.00 $2,958.50

NoCheck640 10 TINA M FISHER $0.00 $2,060.81

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 2 of 5

56



Check NoEmployee No Department Name Net Pay Ach Net Pay

NoCheck556 49 DOUG D FOLAND $0.00 $1,173.46

NoCheck677 10 JUAN A FUENTES $0.00 $2,439.30

NoCheck704 10 THERON A GARCIA $0.00 $2,792.32

NoCheck729 10 MIKA R GINGERICH $0.00 $2,296.16

NoCheck754 10 TROY A GONZALEZ $0.00 $3,173.29

NoCheck734 10 SEAN P GORMAN $0.00 $2,056.95

NoCheck759 11 EMILY T GREEN $0.00 $2,728.87

NoCheck739 10 CARLOS U GUTIERREZ $0.00 $2,401.03

NoCheck744 10 JUAN CARLOS GUTIERREZ-BRAVO $0.00 $2,556.79

NoCheck745 10 ELIZABETH GUZMAN $0.00 $3,340.55

NoCheck778 50 RIGOBERTO GUZMAN $0.00 $1,920.45

NoCheck788 10 DOUGLAS A HALL $0.00 $2,047.69

NoCheck781 10 JOHNNY D HARMON $0.00 $1,867.31

NoCheck773 40 PAUL T HEFFERNAN $0.00 $2,064.95

NoCheck828 10 RAUL HERNANDEZ $0.00 $2,011.16

NoCheck764 10 MICHAEL J HERRERA $0.00 $2,352.83

NoCheck772 50 DUSTIN L HERRON $0.00 $1,684.25

NoCheck775 10 JEREMIAH R HODGES $0.00 $1,970.66

NoCheck782 10 AMANDA M HOWARD $0.00 $1,875.13

NoCheck799 10 TINA M JAHR $0.00 $1,531.84

NoCheck1008 10 MICHAEL A JARBEAU $0.00 $1,252.03

NoCheck1028 10 JONATHAN E JOHNSON $0.00 $1,206.05

NoCheck1029 50 RAVINN A JOHNSON $0.00 $3,134.78

NoCheck1033 50 CHAUNCEY L JONASSEN $0.00 $3,292.60

NoCheck1075 10 DOUGLAS G JOSEPH $0.00 $1,958.27

NoCheck1128 40 PETER W KAPPLER $0.00 $1,954.19

NoCheck1139 10 HERBERT S KHANTIOK $0.00 $2,383.15

NoCheck1134 50 ROBERT J KIRK $0.00 $3,133.53

NoCheck1175 10 STEPHANNIE D KUNTZ $0.00 $2,153.11

NoCheck1227 50 DEVIN R LARSON $0.00 $2,495.56

NoCheck1208 49 KYLE S LARSON $0.00 $2,142.94

NoCheck1207 35 SHAWN A LARSON $0.00 $3,008.63

NoCheck1236 10 CLARK G LEWIS $0.00 $1,951.25

NoCheck1196 10 ROBERT A LEWIS $0.00 $1,141.82

NoCheck1196 10 ROBERT A LEWIS $0.00 $2,209.94

NoCheck1237 10 DAVID L LIEN $0.00 $1,220.59

NoCheck1253 10 RONALD L LYMAN $0.00 $2,284.29

NoCheck1352 10 DIEGO A MANRRIQUEZ $0.00 $1,976.38

NoCheck1291 10 JUAN P MARTINEZ $0.00 $2,160.60

NoCheck1294 10 ALEXANDER L MAYO $0.00 $2,931.79

NoCheck1302 10 JERAD L MCCULLOUGH $0.00 $1,828.12

NoCheck1343 50 MAX W MCEACHERN $0.00 $1,888.43

NoCheck1290 49 MEGAN S MCKENZIE $0.00 $1,358.29

NoCheck1353 45 LUKAS R MEEKER $0.00 $2,856.69

NoCheck1436 50 ALBARO MELENDREZ $0.00 $2,159.37

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 3 of 5

57



Check NoEmployee No Department Name Net Pay Ach Net Pay

NoCheck1439 10 ROBERTO MELENDREZ MENDOZA $0.00 $1,924.84

NoCheck1356 10 PEDRO MELENDREZ $0.00 $2,074.07

NoCheck1351 10 OSCAR MENDOZA $0.00 $2,076.55

NoCheck1350 10 MOISES MERCADO $0.00 $2,529.74

NoCheck1438 11 ROSS E MILLER $0.00 $2,001.89

NoCheck307 30 SAMANTHA L MILLER $0.00 $1,851.77

NoCheck1355 10 CEDAR B MINGO $0.00 $3,621.52

NoCheck1400 10 CLINTON H MOON $0.00 $1,515.48

NoCheck1420 10 ABEL MORENO $0.00 $2,761.13

NoCheck1422 10 DAVID C MORIN $0.00 $1,134.61

NoCheck1427 10 CRAIG J MORRIS $0.00 $2,013.51

NoCheck1423 10 TAWNEE M MOSIER $0.00 $2,137.68

NoCheck1434 16 JORDAN MUNDAY $0.00 $2,402.33

NoCheck1440 35 DAWSON E MURREN $0.00 $2,732.81

NoCheck1456 10 TIMOTHY B NORRIS $0.00 $2,004.08

NoCheck1564 10 ELI A OLIVARES $0.00 $2,570.44

NoCheck1566 10 OMAR OLIVARES VARGAS $0.00 $2,528.99

NoCheck1562 10 TOTO O'REILLY $0.00 $2,484.76

NoCheck1563 30 PADEN OSTERLUND $0.00 $2,769.26

NoCheck1561 35 CAMI L OSTROM $0.00 $2,352.47

NoCheck1634 49 MONICA PEREZ DE GUERRERO $0.00 $1,428.30

NoCheck1632 10 CESAR PEREZ GUTIERRES $0.00 $2,093.19

NoCheck1619 10 ARTURO J PEREZ JIMENEZ $0.00 $1,910.68

NoCheck1636 10 RHONDA J PEREZ $0.00 $2,572.23

NoCheck1662 49 JONATHAN POLLOCK $0.00 $1,890.15

NoCheck148 10 JESSICA POLLOW $0.00 $2,372.33

NoCheck1678 10 VICTOR W PORROVECCHIO $0.00 $3,052.46

NoCheck1680 10 MARTIN K PRICE $0.00 $2,652.00

NoCheck1822 11 BRAD R RADER $0.00 $2,753.81

NoCheck1825 50 ANTHONY D REALME $0.00 $4,074.82

NoCheck1850 10 MONTI A REALME $0.00 $1,410.68

NoCheck1826 50 JOSEPH J REDMON $0.00 $3,208.04

NoCheck1833 16 RANDY R REQUA $0.00 $2,439.38

NoCheck1835 10 DANIEL REYES $0.00 $2,129.55

NoCheck1831 10 HECTOR J REYNA $0.00 $2,423.75

NoCheck1837 50 EMILY REYNOLDS $0.00 $1,899.88

NoCheck1862 10 ROBIN ROBBINS $0.00 $2,746.72

NoCheck1863 10 TAWNYA R ROCKNEY $0.00 $1,483.52

NoCheck1875 30 JOSE A RODRIGUEZ $0.00 $1,837.03

NoCheck1869 50 SERGIO RODRIGUEZ LEMUS $0.00 $3,146.82

NoCheck1877 10 SALVADOR RODRIGUEZ VIDAL, JR. $0.00 $2,163.48

NoCheck1866 10 ALEJANDRO RODRIGUEZ-CORTEZ $0.00 $2,514.60

NoCheck1878 10 DAVID M ROSE $0.00 $2,203.20

NoCheck1876 50 ARMANDO RUIZ $0.00 $2,783.30

NoCheck1916 10 MAHER J SADIA $0.00 $2,496.15

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 4 of 5

58



Check NoEmployee No Department Name Net Pay Ach Net Pay

NoCheck1900 10 MARTIN SALGADO $0.00 $1,991.90

NoCheck1901 50 JESSE A SALMON $0.00 $1,974.38

NoCheck1919 49 JUANITA L SANDBERG $0.00 $2,024.36

NoCheck1931 10 ALEXIS SANTILLAN VALDEZ $0.00 $1,842.90

NoCheck1929 49 ERIC SCHELL $0.00 $1,906.89

NoCheck1933 50 TRISTAN L SCOTT $0.00 $1,692.86

NoCheck1553 10 RICHARD E SEBEK $0.00 $1,978.48

NoCheck1600 45 DEBORAH K SETON PAINE $0.00 $9,056.39

NoCheck1600 45 DEBORAH K SETON PAINE $0.00 $3,198.34

NoCheck1944 35 JULIE Y SHIPMAN $0.00 $3,277.27

NoCheck1967 10 CHARLES B SIX $0.00 $2,535.29

NoCheck1953 35 WALKER A SJOLANDER $0.00 $1,726.50

NoCheck1947 16 MICHELLE SLATER $0.00 $2,500.50

NoCheck1969 10 BG D SMITH $0.00 $2,756.96

NoCheck1968 10 DAYLON R SMITH $0.00 $1,813.99

NoCheck1963 49 JEFF M SMITH $0.00 $3,135.84

NoCheck1959 35 JODY C SMITH $0.00 $2,886.77

NoCheck1975 50 MIGUEL A SOLACHE $0.00 $1,983.14

NoCheck1986 10 DEANNA B SPENCER $0.00 $1,940.56

NoCheck1984 10 GARTH J STREETER $0.00 $2,109.75

NoCheck1660 11 JENNIFER M THERIEN $0.00 $3,040.34

NoCheck1661 50 JOHN J THERIEN $0.00 $3,165.38

NoCheck2028 16 TINA M THORPE $0.00 $2,199.06

NoCheck2022 50 JIM L TIPPENS $0.00 $3,105.38

NoCheck2041 10 RUTH J TOLER $0.00 $2,077.25

NoCheck2058 10 JAIME S TORRES $0.00 $2,078.44

NoCheck2060 10 JOSE TORRES $0.00 $2,461.20

NoCheck2065 10 ROBERTO TORRES $0.00 $2,150.26

NoCheck2295 10 TONY J VALESON $0.00 $2,157.67

NoCheck2299 10 PEDRO VERA GOMEZ $0.00 $1,747.36

NoCheck2303 50 JOSEPH D WAGNER $0.00 $1,922.58

NoCheck2307 11 SARAH G WALKER $0.00 $3,775.29

NoCheck2333 45 ERIC R WEST $0.00 $3,248.19

NoCheck2352 35 KRYSTAL WHITEHALL $0.00 $2,061.32

NoCheck2351 40 JOSHUA WILLEY $0.00 $1,971.94

NoCheck2350 10 JAMES F WILSON, JR $0.00 $2,410.35

NoCheck2370 31 JOHN C WOLD $0.00 $2,521.55

NoCheck2347 50 MATTHEW WRIGHT $0.00 $2,687.14

NoCheck2398 10 DAVID W YEAST $0.00 $2,206.58

Total $5,133.48 $480,548.18

Grand Total $485,681.66

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 5 of 5

59



Accounts Payable Disbursement List

Vendor # Name Check # Date Amount CommentsVoided

156 AFLAC 00116046 9/8/2025 $246.24 SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE

1665 CLUB LINK 00116047 9/8/2025 $880.00 MEMBERSHIP DUES

2301 DEPT OF SOCIAL & HEALTH 00116048 9/8/2025 $1,331.00 CHILD SUPPORT

3632 HRA VEBA TRUST 00116049 9/8/2025 $11,100.00 VEBA CONTRIBUTIONS

5420 LEGALSHIELD 00116050 9/8/2025 $49.85 EMPLOYEE SERVICES

4169 Lincoln National Life Insurance Co 00116051 9/8/2025 $6,707.33 INSURANCE PREMIUMS

3680 MISSIONSQUARE 303576 00116052 9/8/2025 $19,974.21 DEFERRED COMP CONTRIBUTIONS

4822 NW ADMIN. TRANSFER ACCT 00116053 9/8/2025 $336,272.00 MEDICAL INS-TEAMSTERS

6146 TEAMSTERS 00116054 9/8/2025 $7,356.00 UNION DUES

7346 WESTERN CONF OF TEAMSTER 00116055 9/8/2025 $23,594.84 PENSION FUNDS

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116056 9/9/2025 TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116057 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116058 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116059 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116060 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116061 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116062 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116063 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116064 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116065 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116066 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116067 9/9/2025

4177 LINK - P Card Account 00116068 9/9/2025 $45,389.83

134 A & E AUTO GLASS LLC 00116069 9/11/2025 $435.20

194 A & I Distributors 00116070 9/11/2025 $915.92

405 A CENTRAL 00116071 9/11/2025 $597.07

453 AAA Fire Protection Inc. 00116072 9/11/2025 $0.00

487 ASHLEY BRANDFAS 00116073 9/11/2025 $58.21

750 Big Belly Solar, LLC 00116074 9/11/2025 $812.61

313 BULMARO AMBROCIO HERRERA 00116075 9/11/2025 $200.00

1031 BYD COACH & BUS LLC 00116076 9/11/2025 $528.08

1500 CHELAN CO PUD 00116077 9/11/2025 $16,997.26

1520 CHELAN CO TREASURER 00116078 9/11/2025 $1,137.64

411 Cintas Corporation 00116079 9/11/2025 $3,939.23

480 Cintas Corporation No. 2- Do Not U 00116080 9/11/2025 $0.00

4155 CITY OF LEAVENWORTH 00116081 9/11/2025 $209.10

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 1 of 3

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

TRAVEL, COMP SUPPLIES 

AUTO GLASS

MAINT SUPPLIES

FENCE PANELS/CHAIN LIN 

FIRE PROTECTION

TRAVEL

WASTE DISPOSAL 

UNIFORM REIMB

MAINT SUPPLIES 

UTILITIES

EASY & SCHOOL ST PROJECT 

UNIFORMS

FIRST AID PRODUCTS 

UTILITIES

60



Vendor # Name Check # Date Amount CommentsVoided

1664 CITY OF WENATCHEE 00116082 9/11/2025 $5,526.01 UTILITIES

4826 COLEMAN OIL COMPANY 00116083 9/11/2025 $47,762.37 FUEL

1820 COMMERCIAL TIRE 00116084 9/11/2025 TIRES

1820 COMMERCIAL TIRE 00116085 9/11/2025 $18,489.12 TIRES

2080 CUMMINS INC 00116086 9/11/2025 $4,224.48 MAINT SUPPLIES

2290 DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING 00116087 9/11/2025 $294.75 NEW VEHICLE LICENSE

297 DOUGLAS COUNTY PUD 00116088 9/11/2025 $2,225.00 UTILITIES

2398 EASTERN CASCADE DISTRIBUTI 00116089 9/11/2025 $947.83 JANITORIAL

2780 FEDERAL EXPRESS 00116090 9/11/2025 $13.96 PRIORITY MAIL

3005 GILLIG LLC 00116091 9/11/2025 $1,276.44 MAINT SUPPLIES

3040 GO USA INC. 00116092 9/11/2025 $481.28 UNIFORMS

3290 HALVERSONS AUTO BODY INC. 00116093 9/11/2025 $14,155.86 BUS BODY REPAIR

3648 HOLADAY'S CUSTOM MUFFLER 00116094 9/11/2025 $190.58 MAINT SUPPLIES

3652 HOME DEPOT 00116095 9/11/2025 $115.82 FAC SUPPLIES

3721 INLAND NORTHWEST CINEMEDI 00116096 9/11/2025 $925.00 ADVERTISING

2944 JONES & BARTLETT LEARNING 00116097 9/11/2025 $4,341.14 TRAINING MATERIALS

496 JUAN A FUENTES 00116098 9/11/2025 $200.00 UNIFORM REIMB

4070 LAKE CHELAN HOSPITAL 00116099 9/11/2025 $5,040.00 CHELAN SENIOR TRIPS

2953 LGS GROUP AUTOMATIVE TECH 00116100 9/11/2025 $102.52 MAINT SUPPLIES

4179 LOCAL TEL COMMUNICATIONS 00116101 9/11/2025 $1,330.46 COMPUTER PROGRAMING

3800 NAPA Auto Parts 00116102 9/11/2025 MAINT SUPPLIES

3800 NAPA Auto Parts 00116103 9/11/2025 $896.19 MAINT SUPPLIES

4922 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 00116104 9/11/2025 $1,899.53 OFFICE SUPPLIES

1873 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS / CSK 00116105 9/11/2025 MAINT SUPPLIES

1873 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS / CSK 00116106 9/11/2025 $2,754.29 MAINT SUPPLIES

3820 PAT ARMSTRONG FORD 00116107 9/11/2025 $626.24 MAINT SUPPLIES

495 PAT MCDANIEL 00116108 9/11/2025 $40.00 REIMBURSEMENT

5291 PLATT 00116109 9/11/2025 $484.89 LIFT EQUIPMENT

5777 RH2 ENGINEERING, INC 00116110 9/11/2025 $929.75 ENGINEERING SERVICES

3695 Ricoh USA Inc. 00116111 9/11/2025 $1,965.56 PRINTING

4601 Roberto Melendrez 00116112 9/11/2025 $163.63 UNIFORM REIMB

5623 ROMAINE ELECTRIC 00116113 9/11/2025 $469.12 AUTO PARTS

5588 ROY'S LAWN CARE & SNOWPLO 00116114 9/11/2025 $3,427.20 LANDSCAPING

476 Seattle's Finest 00116115 9/11/2025 $10,816.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2176 Sterling 00116116 9/11/2025 $444.68 BACKGROUND CHECK

6005 TACOMA SCREW PRODUCT 00116117 9/11/2025 $486.79 MAINT SUPPLIES

6171 THERMO FLUIDS, INC 00116118 9/11/2025 $565.00 WASTE SUBSTANCES

2818 TINA FISHER 00116119 9/11/2025 $71.65 UNIFORM REIMB

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 2 of 3

61



Vendor # Name Check # Date Amount CommentsVoided

5861 TK ELEVATOR 00116120 9/11/2025 $2,505.54 ELEVATOR SERVICE

6256 TOTAL FILTRATION SERVICES, I 00116121 9/11/2025 $5,381.08 MAINT SUPPLIES

25 TOWN CHRYSLER JEEP DODGE 00116122 9/11/2025 $128.18 MAINT SUPPLIES

1458 TOWNSQUARE MEDIA, INC. 00116123 9/11/2025 $1,184.85 ADVERTISING

456 TRANSIT 00116124 9/11/2025 $870.40 SOFTWARE

399 UCS, LLC 00116125 9/11/2025 $390.00 DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING

6481 ULINE 00116126 9/11/2025 $129.23 SHIPPING SUPPLIES

3100 W W GRAINGER INC 00116127 9/11/2025 $143.60 MAINT SUPPLIES

6980 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WAS 00116128 9/11/2025 $1,805.08 UTILITIES

537 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 00116129 9/11/2025 $958.96 JANITORIAL

7130 WENATCHEE VALLEY CHAMBER 00116130 9/11/2025 $1,100.00 MEMBERSHIP DUES

7547 WESCO PAINT & EQUIP SUPPL 00116131 9/11/2025 $1,228.11 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

7375 WEX BANK 00116132 9/11/2025 $4,425.21 FUEL PRODUCTS

7660 ZUMAR INDUSTRIES INC 00116133 9/11/2025 $852.43 FAC MAINT SUPPLIES

$633,517.43 Total:

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 3 of 3

62



Payroll Check Register
09/19/2025Check Date:

Check NoEmployee No Department Name Net Pay Ach Net Pay

001161341566 10 OMAR OLIVARES VARGAS $2,079.34 $0.00

NoCheck105 10 WESLEY H ABBEY $0.00 $2,564.75

NoCheck109 10 RICHARD P ALBERT $0.00 $2,018.39

NoCheck147 10 JEFFREY ALLSHOUSE $0.00 $581.79

NoCheck151 10 TYLER ALLSTOT $0.00 $2,319.40

NoCheck138 10 BULMARO AMBROCIO HERRERA $0.00 $2,051.55

NoCheck139 50 OMAR AMBROCIO VASQUEZ $0.00 $2,770.25

NoCheck155 50 ED ARCHER $0.00 $3,998.21

NoCheck159 11 DOMINIC ASHMORE $0.00 $1,389.23

NoCheck161 16 MIKE ASPEN $0.00 $2,212.97

NoCheck162 11 JACOB AUSTIN $0.00 $3,014.48

NoCheck206 50 JEFF BALAURO $0.00 $3,216.13

NoCheck201 49 SHJON S BALAURO $0.00 $1,420.67

NoCheck203 10 LORELEI BARNES $0.00 $2,436.17

NoCheck140 45 YERANIA M BARRERA-AGUILAR $0.00 $1,429.92

NoCheck214 11 PEDRO A BARRERA-BLANCO $0.00 $2,773.93

NoCheck219 10 BOBBY BEASON $0.00 $3,581.11

NoCheck234 10 SHAMYIA M BECERRA $0.00 $1,076.64

NoCheck233 10 STEVEN C BECK $0.00 $2,121.31

NoCheck232 10 MICHAEL BELL $0.00 $2,275.41

NoCheck235 10 JONATHAN BELLO $0.00 $976.28

NoCheck236 30 KIMBERLY BELT $0.00 $2,033.68

NoCheck237 10 LUIS R BELTRAN $0.00 $2,190.29

NoCheck224 11 JESSICA R BENNETT $0.00 $2,952.66

NoCheck241 40 DONALD BILLEN $0.00 $3,713.93

NoCheck243 16 JULIE A BILLER $0.00 $2,590.30

NoCheck228 10 JOSE BLANCO $0.00 $2,228.36

NoCheck258 10 GRANT BOWEN-PICARD $0.00 $2,384.95

NoCheck263 10 ASHLEY D BRANDFAS $0.00 $2,681.15

NoCheck269 10 THOMAS E BRAUN $0.00 $2,290.44

NoCheck272 30 JUSTIN C BROCKWELL $0.00 $1,710.65

NoCheck218 10 SCOTT P BROWN $0.00 $2,175.34

NoCheck271 10 TONYA R BROWNING $0.00 $3,123.50

NoCheck1979 45 ADINA J BRUKETTA $0.00 $2,117.31

NoCheck279 10 ASTRID O BULL $0.00 $1,707.06

NoCheck223 10 PATRICK B BURNS $0.00 $1,293.69

NoCheck296 45 SHAAID BUSTOS SALGADO $0.00 $1,942.30

NoCheck312 10 THOMAS T CAMPBELL $0.00 $1,808.85

NoCheck309 10 JESUS CAPI $0.00 $2,108.87

NoCheck310 11 LEONARD J CARUSO $0.00 $2,914.57

NoCheck306 10 JUAN CASTRO $0.00 $2,363.31

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 1 of 5

63



Check NoEmployee No Department Name Net Pay Ach Net Pay

NoCheck328 40 ALYSSA L CHAMBERLAIN $0.00 $2,328.18

NoCheck332 10 JOHN J CHAMBERS $0.00 $2,371.54

NoCheck331 11 TRISHA A CHANG $0.00 $2,826.38

NoCheck344 10 CHRISTOPHER R CLARK $0.00 $1,920.97

NoCheck352 16 KRISTY E COCKRUM $0.00 $2,068.96

NoCheck365 20 NICK COVEY $0.00 $4,822.59

NoCheck366 11 RAMON D COX $0.00 $3,069.68

NoCheck381 50 AARON R CRUTCHER $0.00 $2,787.60

NoCheck384 10 GABRIEL J CUEVAS $0.00 $2,251.46

NoCheck386 10 JOSE L CUEVAS $0.00 $2,764.02

NoCheck406 10 BRANDON E DANIEL $0.00 $1,734.49

NoCheck409 20 SELINA I DANKO $0.00 $2,693.19

NoCheck425 11 JEFF A DAY $0.00 $3,496.48

NoCheck454 10 DIANA P DENHAM $0.00 $2,371.67

NoCheck465 10 GARY A DOERSCHLAG $0.00 $2,029.95

NoCheck467 45 JENNIFER M DOLGE $0.00 $3,780.64

NoCheck487 10 JOHN G DUFRANE $0.00 $1,770.47

NoCheck485 10 STEPHANIE L DURRANT $0.00 $2,251.17

NoCheck502 16 JOSHUA J EMMONS $0.00 $2,011.37

NoCheck1428 10 TYLER-ANNE M EMMONS $0.00 $2,052.96

NoCheck509 10 SCOTT P ENGLISH $0.00 $2,238.70

NoCheck575 50 JESUS H ESPINOZA $0.00 $1,731.46

NoCheck577 10 RODOLFO ESPINOZA $0.00 $2,124.61

NoCheck576 50 ANIVAN ESTRADA $0.00 $1,744.07

NoCheck581 16 ROBERT L EVERETT $0.00 $2,209.14

NoCheck605 10 DOMINIC M FABIAN $0.00 $2,813.55

NoCheck597 31 ANDRES G FARIAS $0.00 $2,895.59

NoCheck598 10 MIGUEL FARIAS $0.00 $2,713.87

NoCheck608 10 ROBERT W FERGUSON $0.00 $1,504.64

NoCheck620 31 DYLAN J FIORINI $0.00 $3,261.97

NoCheck640 10 TINA M FISHER $0.00 $1,962.16

NoCheck556 49 DOUG D FOLAND $0.00 $1,848.47

NoCheck677 10 JUAN A FUENTES $0.00 $2,252.10

NoCheck704 10 THERON A GARCIA $0.00 $3,371.75

NoCheck729 10 MIKA R GINGERICH $0.00 $2,174.44

NoCheck754 10 TROY A GONZALEZ $0.00 $2,366.11

NoCheck734 10 SEAN P GORMAN $0.00 $2,156.98

NoCheck759 11 EMILY T GREEN $0.00 $2,751.07

NoCheck739 10 CARLOS U GUTIERREZ $0.00 $2,615.37

NoCheck744 10 JUAN CARLOS GUTIERREZ-BRAVO $0.00 $2,292.31

NoCheck745 10 ELIZABETH GUZMAN $0.00 $2,780.55

NoCheck778 50 RIGOBERTO GUZMAN $0.00 $2,112.07

NoCheck788 10 DOUGLAS A HALL $0.00 $2,302.66

NoCheck781 10 JOHNNY D HARMON $0.00 $2,558.22

NoCheck773 40 PAUL T HEFFERNAN $0.00 $2,287.76

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 2 of 5

64



Check NoEmployee No Department Name Net Pay Ach Net Pay

NoCheck828 10 RAUL HERNANDEZ $0.00 $2,228.65

NoCheck764 10 MICHAEL J HERRERA $0.00 $2,613.00

NoCheck772 50 DUSTIN L HERRON $0.00 $1,848.44

NoCheck775 10 JEREMIAH R HODGES $0.00 $2,215.68

NoCheck782 10 AMANDA M HOWARD $0.00 $2,107.58

NoCheck799 10 TINA M JAHR $0.00 $1,744.94

NoCheck1008 10 MICHAEL A JARBEAU $0.00 $1,307.11

NoCheck1028 10 JONATHAN E JOHNSON $0.00 $1,405.97

NoCheck1029 50 RAVINN A JOHNSON $0.00 $2,646.18

NoCheck1033 50 CHAUNCEY L JONASSEN $0.00 $2,940.54

NoCheck1075 10 DOUGLAS G JOSEPH $0.00 $2,145.97

NoCheck1128 40 PETER W KAPPLER $0.00 $2,144.69

NoCheck1139 10 HERBERT S KHANTIOK $0.00 $2,404.84

NoCheck1134 50 ROBERT J KIRK $0.00 $3,444.83

NoCheck1135 10 TAMIE C KIRK $0.00 $1,029.89

NoCheck1175 10 STEPHANNIE D KUNTZ $0.00 $2,418.46

NoCheck1227 50 DEVIN R LARSON $0.00 $2,258.25

NoCheck1208 49 KYLE S LARSON $0.00 $1,949.39

NoCheck1207 35 SHAWN A LARSON $0.00 $3,011.05

NoCheck1236 10 CLARK G LEWIS $0.00 $2,752.82

NoCheck1196 10 ROBERT A LEWIS $0.00 $2,332.72

NoCheck1237 10 DAVID L LIEN $0.00 $1,942.78

NoCheck1253 10 RONALD L LYMAN $0.00 $2,132.32

NoCheck1352 10 DIEGO A MANRRIQUEZ $0.00 $2,242.83

NoCheck1291 10 JUAN P MARTINEZ $0.00 $2,531.48

NoCheck1294 10 ALEXANDER L MAYO $0.00 $2,406.27

NoCheck1302 10 JERAD L MCCULLOUGH $0.00 $2,133.80

NoCheck1343 50 MAX W MCEACHERN $0.00 $2,077.11

NoCheck1290 49 MEGAN S MCKENZIE $0.00 $1,498.47

NoCheck1353 45 LUKAS R MEEKER $0.00 $2,856.70

NoCheck1436 50 ALBARO MELENDREZ $0.00 $2,366.39

NoCheck1439 10 ROBERTO MELENDREZ MENDOZA $0.00 $2,226.45

NoCheck1356 10 PEDRO MELENDREZ $0.00 $2,102.46

NoCheck1435 10 HUGO MENDOZA $0.00 $1,190.28

NoCheck1351 10 OSCAR MENDOZA $0.00 $1,879.87

NoCheck1350 10 MOISES MERCADO $0.00 $2,900.14

NoCheck1438 11 ROSS E MILLER $0.00 $2,011.75

NoCheck307 30 SAMANTHA L MILLER $0.00 $2,018.57

NoCheck1355 10 CEDAR B MINGO $0.00 $3,225.50

NoCheck1420 10 ABEL MORENO $0.00 $2,753.25

NoCheck1422 10 DAVID C MORIN $0.00 $1,290.37

NoCheck1427 10 CRAIG J MORRIS $0.00 $2,074.96

NoCheck1423 10 TAWNEE M MOSIER $0.00 $2,387.66

NoCheck1434 16 JORDAN MUNDAY $0.00 $2,216.37

NoCheck1440 35 DAWSON E MURREN $0.00 $2,740.21

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 3 of 5

65



Check NoEmployee No Department Name Net Pay Ach Net Pay

NoCheck1456 10 TIMOTHY B NORRIS $0.00 $2,200.48

NoCheck1564 10 ELI A OLIVARES $0.00 $2,331.26

NoCheck1562 10 TOTO O'REILLY $0.00 $1,967.28

NoCheck1563 30 PADEN OSTERLUND $0.00 $2,770.87

NoCheck1561 35 CAMI L OSTROM $0.00 $2,557.71

NoCheck1634 49 MONICA PEREZ DE GUERRERO $0.00 $1,569.59

NoCheck1632 10 CESAR PEREZ GUTIERRES $0.00 $2,371.97

NoCheck1619 10 ARTURO J PEREZ JIMENEZ $0.00 $2,227.52

NoCheck1636 10 RHONDA J PEREZ $0.00 $2,429.64

NoCheck1662 49 JONATHAN POLLOCK $0.00 $1,582.14

NoCheck148 10 JESSICA POLLOW $0.00 $2,560.93

NoCheck1678 10 VICTOR W PORROVECCHIO $0.00 $3,199.18

NoCheck1680 10 MARTIN K PRICE $0.00 $3,253.24

NoCheck1822 11 BRAD R RADER $0.00 $2,743.94

NoCheck1825 50 ANTHONY D REALME $0.00 $2,326.72

NoCheck1825 50 ANTHONY D REALME $0.00 $3,163.09

NoCheck1850 10 MONTI A REALME $0.00 $1,135.20

NoCheck1826 50 JOSEPH J REDMON $0.00 $3,206.50

NoCheck1833 16 RANDY R REQUA $0.00 $2,642.04

NoCheck1835 10 DANIEL REYES $0.00 $2,370.11

NoCheck1831 10 HECTOR J REYNA $0.00 $2,621.70

NoCheck1837 50 EMILY REYNOLDS $0.00 $2,086.14

NoCheck1862 10 ROBIN ROBBINS $0.00 $2,535.54

NoCheck1863 10 TAWNYA R ROCKNEY $0.00 $2,159.07

NoCheck1875 30 JOSE A RODRIGUEZ $0.00 $2,017.60

NoCheck1869 50 SERGIO RODRIGUEZ LEMUS $0.00 $3,151.75

NoCheck1877 10 SALVADOR RODRIGUEZ VIDAL, JR. $0.00 $1,972.34

NoCheck1866 10 ALEJANDRO RODRIGUEZ-CORTEZ $0.00 $2,522.95

NoCheck1878 10 DAVID M ROSE $0.00 $2,257.89

NoCheck1876 50 ARMANDO RUIZ $0.00 $3,051.10

NoCheck1916 10 MAHER J SADIA $0.00 $1,998.50

NoCheck1900 10 MARTIN SALGADO $0.00 $3,436.77

NoCheck1901 50 JESSE A SALMON $0.00 $2,172.23

NoCheck1919 49 JUANITA L SANDBERG $0.00 $1,589.23

NoCheck1931 10 ALEXIS SANTILLAN VALDEZ $0.00 $2,394.87

NoCheck1929 49 ERIC SCHELL $0.00 $2,083.89

NoCheck1933 50 TRISTAN L SCOTT $0.00 $1,859.63

NoCheck1553 10 RICHARD E SEBEK $0.00 $2,311.71

NoCheck1944 35 JULIE Y SHIPMAN $0.00 $3,277.27

NoCheck1967 10 CHARLES B SIX $0.00 $2,182.59

NoCheck1953 35 WALKER A SJOLANDER $0.00 $1,907.09

NoCheck1947 16 MICHELLE SLATER $0.00 $2,303.18

NoCheck1969 10 BG D SMITH $0.00 $2,648.62

NoCheck1968 10 DAYLON R SMITH $0.00 $1,564.39

NoCheck1963 49 JEFF M SMITH $0.00 $3,128.44

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 4 of 5

66



Check NoEmployee No Department Name Net Pay Ach Net Pay

NoCheck1959 35 $0.00 $2,911.43

NoCheck1975 50 $0.00 $1,905.73

NoCheck1986 10 $0.00 $2,185.32

NoCheck1984 10 $0.00 $1,952.98

NoCheck1660 11 $0.00 $3,045.27

NoCheck1661 50 $0.00 $2,673.30

NoCheck2028 16 $0.00 $2,427.98

NoCheck2022 50 $0.00 $3,106.62

NoCheck2041 10 $0.00 $2,320.00

NoCheck2058 10 $0.00 $2,337.94

NoCheck2060 10 $0.00 $2,618.24

NoCheck2065 10 $0.00 $2,149.87

NoCheck2295 10 $0.00 $2,374.79

NoCheck2299 10 $0.00 $1,636.85

NoCheck2303 50 $0.00 $1,740.53

NoCheck2307 11 $0.00 $3,777.75

NoCheck2333 45 $0.00 $3,218.00

NoCheck2352 35 $0.00 $2,251.67

NoCheck2351 40 $0.00 $2,147.99

NoCheck2351 40 $0.00 $2,583.09

NoCheck2350 10 $0.00 $2,679.22

NoCheck2370 31 $0.00 $2,798.05

NoCheck2347 50 $0.00 $2,426.19

NoCheck2398 10

JODY C SMITH 

MIGUEL A SOLACHE 

DEANNA B SPENCER 

GARTH J STREETER 

JENNIFER M THERIEN 

JOHN J THERIEN 

TINA M THORPE

JIM L TIPPENS 

RUTH J TOLER 

JAIME S TORRES 

JOSE TORRES 

ROBERTO TORRES 

TONY J VALESON 

PEDRO VERA GOMEZ 

JOSEPH D WAGNER 

SARAH G WALKER 

ERIC R WEST

 KRYSTAL WHITEHALL 

JOSHUA WILLEY 

JOSHUA WILLEY 

JAMES F WILSON, JR 

JOHN C WOLD 

MATTHEW WRIGHT 

DAVID W YEAST $0.00 $2,489.05

Total $2,079.34 $468,791.94

Grand Total $470,871.28

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 5 of 5

67



Accounts Payable Disbursement List

Vendor # Name Check # Date Amount CommentsVoided

134 A & E AUTO GLASS LLC 00116135 9/22/2025 $348.16 AUTO GLASS

194 A & I Distributors 00116136 9/22/2025 $1,349.52 MAINT SUPPLIES

4637 ABC COMPANIES 00116137 9/22/2025 $2,726.33 MAINT SUPPLIES

184 ALL DOORS & HARDWARE CO 00116138 9/22/2025 $49.78 CHANGE LOCKS/COL STAT

131 AMB TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 00116139 9/22/2025 $3,643.07 MAINT SUPPLIES

231 Avail Technologies Inc. 00116140 9/22/2025 $435.00 CAD/AVL

465 Axe Fire & Security 00116141 9/22/2025 $1,305.60 FIRE ALERT EQUIPMENT

1908 CED - CONSOLIDATED ELECTR 00116142 9/22/2025 $321.60 FAC MAINT SUPPLIES

411 Cintas Corporation 00116143 9/22/2025 $4,814.51 UNIFORMS

469 Cintas Fire 00116144 9/22/2025 $577.73 FIRE PROTECTION

1663 CITY OF EAST WENATCHEE 00116145 9/22/2025 $9,296.11 BUS PULLOUT PROJECT

4826 COLEMAN OIL COMPANY 00116146 9/22/2025 $46,653.58 FUEL

2080 CUMMINS INC 00116147 9/22/2025 $776.14 MAINT SUPPLIES

2301 DEPT OF SOCIAL & HEALTH 00116148 9/22/2025 $1,331.00 CHILD SUPPORT

317 DOUGLAS COUNTY SEWER DIS 00116149 9/22/2025 $62.78 UTILITIES

316 EAST WENATCHEE WATER DIST 00116150 9/22/2025 $57.56 UTILITIES

366 ERIN McCARDLE 00116151 9/22/2025 $70.00 BOARD PER DIEM

2780 FEDERAL EXPRESS 00116152 9/22/2025 $38.29 PRIORITY MAIL

3005 GILLIG LLC 00116153 9/22/2025 $311.48 MAINT SUPPLIES

3040 GO USA INC. 00116154 9/22/2025 UNIFORMS

3040 GO USA INC. 00116155 9/22/2025 $1,531.12 UNIFORMS

3652 HOME DEPOT 00116156 9/22/2025 $1,300.36 FAC SUPPLIES

3850 HOWELL AT THE MOON PRODU 00116157 9/22/2025 $10,612.00 AUDIO/VISUAL PRODUCTION

3756 I/O CONTROLS CORPORATION 00116158 9/22/2025 $2,086.78 SIGNAGE

3700 InPrint Printing 00116159 9/22/2025 $495.22 PRINTING

3735 INTRATEM 00116160 9/22/2025 $610.00 ACCOUNT MAINTENANCE

2850 JIM FLETCHER 00116161 9/22/2025 $70.00 BOARD PER DIEM

4072 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES 00116162 9/22/2025 $579.70 INTERPRETING SVCS

4170 LINK ADVANCE TRAVEL 00116163 9/22/2025 $819.00 TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT

367 LOYD SMITH 00116164 9/22/2025 $70.00 BOARD PER DIEM

3680 MISSIONSQUARE 303576 00116165 9/22/2025 $18,183.65 DEFERRED COMP CONTRIBUTIONS

3800 NAPA Auto Parts 00116166 9/22/2025 MAINT SUPPLIES

3800 NAPA Auto Parts 00116167 9/22/2025 $1,737.31 MAINT SUPPLIES

4815 NORTH CASCADES HEATING 00116168 9/22/2025 $136.00 MAINT ON HVAC EQUIP

4922 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 00116169 9/22/2025 $609.10 OFFICE SUPPLIES

4920 OGDEN MURPHY WALLACE, P.L. 00116170 9/22/2025 $10,662.80 LEGAL SERVICES

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 1 of 3

68



Vendor # Name Check # Date Amount CommentsVoided

1873 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS / CSK 00116171 9/22/2025 MAINT SUPPLIES

1873 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS / CSK 00116172 9/22/2025 $1,664.38 MAINT SUPPLIES

375 OUTFRONT MEDIA 00116173 9/22/2025 $2,750.00 ADVERTISING

4940 OXARC INC 00116174 9/22/2025 $437.85 MAINT CHEMICALS

4439 PACIFIC SECURITY 00116175 9/22/2025 $0.00 SECURITY

3820 PAT ARMSTRONG FORD 00116176 9/22/2025 MAINT SUPPLIES

3820 PAT ARMSTRONG FORD 00116177 9/22/2025 $1,126.57 MAINT SUPPLIES

495 PAT MCDANIEL 00116178 9/22/2025 $40.00 REIMBURSEMENT

457 Paul Downs 00116179 9/22/2025 $70.00 BOARD PER DIEM

63 RAPID7 LLC 00116180 9/22/2025 $1,045.52 SOFTWARE UPDATES

3695 Ricoh USA Inc. 00116181 9/22/2025 $311.23 PRINTING

5678 S&W IRRIGATION 00116182 9/22/2025 $157.08 FAC SUPPLIES

5649 SAFETY-KLEEN 00116183 9/22/2025 $1,459.60 OIL PRODUCTS

5945 STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE 00116184 9/22/2025 $5,564.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

6005 TACOMA SCREW PRODUCT 00116185 9/22/2025 $588.32 MAINT SUPPLIES

25 TOWN CHRYSLER JEEP DODGE 00116186 9/22/2025 $294.84 MAINT SUPPLIES

467 TRANSPO GROUP USA INC 00116187 9/22/2025 $13,659.79 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

134 A & E AUTO GLASS LLC 00116188 9/26/2025 $136.00 AUTO GLASS

405 A CENTRAL 00116189 9/26/2025 $1,371.81 FENCE PANELS/CHAIN LIN

4637 ABC COMPANIES 00116190 9/26/2025 $1,749.67 MAINT SUPPLIES

210 Auto B Clean 00116191 9/26/2025 $1,901.48 BUS WASH GOODS

465 Axe Fire & Security 00116192 9/26/2025 $30,535.81 FIRE ALERT EQUIPMENT

750 Big Belly Solar, LLC 00116193 9/26/2025 $482.55 WASTE DISPOSAL

1200 CASCADE NATURAL GAS 00116194 9/26/2025 $155.25 UTILITIES

4826 COLEMAN OIL COMPANY 00116195 9/26/2025 $6,090.15 FUEL

2080 CUMMINS INC 00116196 9/26/2025 $790.38 MAINT SUPPLIES

1325 DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 00116197 9/26/2025 $2,317.66 RADIO EQUIPMENT

2768 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC 00116198 9/26/2025 $51.40 MAINT SUPPLIES

3005 GILLIG LLC 00116199 9/26/2025 $191.33 MAINT SUPPLIES

3652 HOME DEPOT 00116200 9/26/2025 $126.03 FAC SUPPLIES

3802 Jody Smith 00116201 9/26/2025 $344.59 REIMBURSEMENT

3960 KEYHOLE SECURITY CENTER 00116202 9/26/2025 $627.12 FAC MAINT SUPPLIES

2953 LGS GROUP AUTOMATIVE TECH 00116203 9/26/2025 $546.34 MAINT SUPPLIES

4339 MATCO TOOLS 00116204 9/26/2025 $75.03 MAINTENANCE TOOLS

3800 NAPA Auto Parts 00116205 9/26/2025 $503.07 MAINT SUPPLIES

4825 NORCO, INC. 00116206 9/26/2025 $27.90 WELDING MATERIALS

4815 NORTH CASCADES HEATING 00116207 9/26/2025 $2,764.54 MAINT ON HVAC EQUIP

4922 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 00116208 9/26/2025 $194.67 OFFICE SUPPLIES

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 2 of 3

69



Vendor # Name Check # Date Amount CommentsVoided

1873 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS / CSK 00116209 9/26/2025 $319.84 MAINT SUPPLIES

4439 PACIFIC SECURITY 00116210 9/26/2025 $28,238.06 SECURITY

3820 PAT ARMSTRONG FORD 00116211 9/26/2025 $25.31 MAINT SUPPLIES

5291 PLATT 00116212 9/26/2025 $1,076.96 LIFT EQUIPMENT

5777 RH2 ENGINEERING, INC 00116213 9/26/2025 $29,927.12 ENGINEERING SERVICES

5761 Selina Danko 00116214 9/26/2025 $20.98 REIMB SUPPLIES

5940 STAN'S MERRY MART 00116215 9/26/2025 $32.61 MISC SUPPLIES

2176 Sterling 00116216 9/26/2025 $4.58 BACKGROUND CHECK

6005 TACOMA SCREW PRODUCT 00116217 9/26/2025 $39.92 MAINT SUPPLIES

7320 THE WENATCHEE WORLD 00116218 9/26/2025 $1,975.00 ADVERTISING

399 UCS, LLC 00116219 9/26/2025 $325.00 DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING

6640 VERIZON WIRELESS 00116220 9/26/2025 $3,349.35 CELL PHONES

537 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 00116221 9/26/2025 $479.48 JANITORIAL

7547 WESCO PAINT & EQUIP SUPPL 00116222 9/26/2025 $205.03 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

411 Cintas Corporation 00116223 9/29/2025 $1,970.62 UNIFORMS

4826 COLEMAN OIL COMPANY 00116224 9/29/2025 $8,320.36 FUEL

3005 GILLIG LLC 00116225 9/29/2025 $171.52 MAINT SUPPLIES

3040 GO USA INC. 00116226 9/29/2025 $1,010.49 UNIFORMS

601 MODEL1 COMMERCIAL VEHICLE 00116227 9/29/2025 MAINT SUPPLIES

601 MODEL1 COMMERCIAL VEHICLE 00116228 9/29/2025 $768,228.35 MAINT SUPPLIES

1873 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS / CSK 00116229 9/29/2025 $393.25 MAINT SUPPLIES

4953 Pacific Power Product 00116230 9/29/2025 $69.70 MAINT SUPPLIES

3820 PAT ARMSTRONG FORD 00116231 9/29/2025 $250.92 MAINT SUPPLIES

252 POINTE PEST CONTROL 00116232 9/29/2025 $326.40 PEST CONTROL - BUSES

5995 SUMMIT LAW GROUP 00116233 9/29/2025 $7,565.23 LEGAL SERVICES

$1,058,149.32 Total:

Monday, October 13, 2025 Page 3 of 3

70



1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
October 21, 2025  Board Meeting 

STAFF REPORT SUMMARY

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors 

FROM: Nick Covey, CEO 

SUBJECT: 2025 Workplan 

Issue / Purpose 

The 2025 workplan spreadsheet included in the board packet outlines key Link Transit initiatives and 
focus areas for the fiscal year. It is designed to give board members a quick overview of the agency’s 
progress in achieving several established goals and objectives. 

Background and categories 

1. New Service:
This section of the workplan highlights Link Transit’s commitment to expanding and enhancing
public transportation services through Vision 2020 and supported by a 2019 voter-approved two-
tenths sales tax increase. The reporting in this section includes the development and
implementation of innovative programs or initiatives that address the evolving needs of the
community.

2. Administration and Board of Directors
The focus of this area is internal governance, organizational development and board-related
activities including strategic planning, policy review and development, committee service and the
annual CEO evaluation.

3. Operations
The operations department of the agency represents the majority of Link Transit employees,
including coach operators. A key goal of the department in 2025 is to adopt a new code of conduct
and trespass policy.

4. Planning
Link’s planning staff focus on long-term strategies for service development and delivery. An
additional focus is finding and forming collaborative partnerships. Key 2025 objectives include
completing a bus stop ADA compliance plan, updating the agency’s performance standards and
launching a redesign of East Wenatchee bus service.

5. Capital
Link has identified several capital projects for completion or partial completion in 2025 including:
◼ A new, enclosed bus barn with charging infrastructure to support a growing electric fleet.
◼ Development of Washington State Patrol property to house a new bus driver training facility.

Anticipated Follow-up 

This spreadsheet will be updated monthly and presented to the Board in the packet and referenced in 
the CEO report portion of the Board of Directors’ meeting 

71



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Vision 2020 Service Changes

Jan service increases

7,000 new 

hours

April service adjustments   

July service adjustments & additional Chelan DART (if grant is awarded)  

Oct new East Wenatchee Service   

Admin/BOD

New Board Member Orientation  

Board Committees  

Policy Review       

Legislative Conference
Board Mting 

Conflict

Triennial Review June 12-13

Lynn Retires  

CEO Evaluation   

Operations

Code of Conduct & Trespass Policy

Admin Services

New Planning Manager Recruit Interview Start

Marketing Mgr Recruit Interview Start

Labor Negotiations

Mobility Summit

Rideshare Price Increase

IT Columbia Station Camera Installation

Marketing & Education

Quarterly News Letter     

Promote New East Wenatchee Service

Open House at Ops Base

       Grand opening new garage & Chambers Afterhours

Finance

State Audit

Board Budget Workshop  

Budget Approval  

Workplan for 2025

Set up meeting dates

72



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Planning

Bus Stop Plan

Board 

Report

Performance Standards Update Review

East Wenatchee Service New Service

TDP to Board  

Strategic plan

Board 

Committee

RFQ for 

consultant

Interview 

Qualified 

Consultants

Board 

Committee/ 

Hire 

Consultant/ 

Dept Interviews

Maintenance

 Bus stop upgrades

Repair 

Willkommen/DOT/l

ot

 

Capital Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Bus Garage Complete Construction *

WSP Property   Bid

Café Improvements Bid

Guest Services Security

Guest Services & 2nd Floor Columbia Stn

Operations Base Expansion

Park and Ride Lots

Entiat Park & Ride Moved to 2026

Hay Canyon P&R 

    Design

    Subdivide

Rock Island P&R

   Finalize Design

   Go out for Bid

   Construct 2026

Manson Canceled

  Pedoi Str Lot 

  Partner with Port to Purchase Lot

  Leffler Field

2026

2026 Project

Site Design and Feasibility Study ($25,000)

Estimated cost $375,000 to $415,000

Work with Manson Parks

Final Design

Moved to 2026 

Public Outreach

Work on TDP

RuncutDesign and Schedule 

Board committee will meet monthly

Construction

 

Design

Subdivide 

List upper property for sale

73



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Chelan

  Lake Side Trail Bus Stop Improvements

  Saunders Street Bus Stop Improvements

2026

Vehicle Maintenance

Nine (9) Ride Buses Arrive

Prepare for Service Arrived

Put in Service

Leavenworth Wrap Theme for two (2) 30'

Five (5) Ride Buses Arrive

Prepare for Service  

Put in Service

Jan/Feb 

2026

Chelan DART Vehicles

New DART Vehicle design

Vehicles Arrive in 2026

Order new diesel cutaways for Chelan Dart

$213,000

74



1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
October 21, 2025  Board Meeting 

STAFF REPORT SUMMARY

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors   

FROM: Selina Danko, Board Clerk 

SUBJECT: Annual CEO Evaluation Packets 

Issue / Purpose 
Packets for the annual review of the Link Transit CEO will be distributed by email (using a Survey 
Monkey tool) on Wednesday, October 22. Paper packets are also available upon request. 

Background 
The packet includes the current CEO job description, the evaluation tool, and data reporting on the 
agency’s achievements related to the Board-approved 2025 System Performance Goals. 

Anticipated Follow-up 
A Survey Monkey tool has been created to ease the process of providing this important feedback, but 
paper packets are available upon request. The Survey Monkey Tool will automatically stop receiving 
responses after November 7. The Board Clerk will compile the anonymous results and present to the 
executive committee (Loyd Smith, Marc Straub and Erin McCardle) prior to the November 18 regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors. An executive session will be held during the regular Board meeting 
for Board members to discuss the evaluation comments. Board action will be slated following the 
executive session relating to the CEO’s meeting of expectations and potential salary increase. 

75



1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
October 21, 2025 Board Meeting 

“ACTION AGENDA” ITEM – SUMMARY REPORT 

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors 

FROM: Samantha Miller, Contract/Procurement Specialist 

SUBJECT: Extending the Tires and Related Services Contract with Commercial Tire 

Issue 
Link Transit’s current contract for fleet tires expires December 31, 2025. This contract with Commercial 
Tire allows for a one-year extension that has yet to be exercised. 

Recommendation 
Authorize Link Transit’s CEO to exercise the one-year extension option in the current Tires and Related 
Services Contract with Commercial Tire for January 1, 2026, through December 31, 2026.  

Support of Goals 
This action supports the Agency’s goals to keep the bus system safe by providing high quality tires and 
related services. 

Alternatives Considered 
Staff can choose to resolicit a Request for Bids (RFB) for the goods and services. However, Staff 
recommends exercising the one-year extension of the current contract. 

Impact on Budget (Capital / Operating) 
Funds for the tires & related services will be allocated in the 2026 Operating Budget. 

Background  
Link Transit has competitively bid for tires and related services since 1992 and found that this process 
has helped to control the cost, quality and availability of the products and services that Link Transit 
requires to maintain its fleet effectively. 

For RFB 2022-10, Tires & Related Services, Link Transit received a total of three bids from (1) Pomps 

Tire (formerly GCR Tires), (2) Commercial Tires, and (3) Tire Factory. Link Transit found all Bids to be 

competitively priced and relatively close in cost. Commercial Tires was the lowest Responsive & 

Responsible bidder. 

Staff have provided the following information on their performance during this current contract period: 

• There have been no negative comments on performance, and their customer service has been

more than sufficient.

Attachments 

 Addendum 1 – Commercial Tire 

 2023-2025 Tire Contract – Commercial Tires 

76



Addendum 1 

Exercise One (1) Year Option to Extend Contract No. 2022-10 

This First Addendum (“Addendum 1”) is entered into agreement this date by and between 
Chelan-Douglas Public Transportation Benefit Area d/b/a Link Transit (“Link Transit”) and 
Commercial Tire Service, Inc. (“Commercial Tire”), for the following contract extension. 

1. This Addendum is to exercise a one (1) year extension to Contract No. 2022-
10, the “Contract”, which provides tires and related services to Link Transit for one
(1) additional year as stated in the Contract, Section 6. This Addendum will begin
January 1, 2026, and terminate December 31, 2026.

2. Except as modified by this Addendum 1, the Parties affirm and ratify all terms
and conditions of the Contract. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the
Contract, and this Addendum 1, the terms and conditions associated with this
Addendum 1 shall control.

Link Transit Commercial Tire 

________________________ ________________________
Nick Covey, CEO ________________________
Date: ____________________ Date: ____________________

77



78



79



1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
October 21, 2025 Board Meeting 

“ACTION AGENDA” ITEM – SUMMARY REPORT 

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors 

FROM: Samantha Miller, Contracts/Procurement Specialist 

SUBJECT: Interlocal Agreement with Chelan County for use of Columbia Station Office Space and 

Facilitation of Cart Distribution Program 

Issue 
Link Transit entered into an interlocal agreement for the Columbia Station first-floor office space use, 
and Coordinated Entry (CE) and Cart Programs in June of 2024 with Chelan County and Catholic 
Charities. Catholic Charities has since terminated their participation in the Agreement and Cart 
Program. 

Recommendation 
Authorize Link Transit’s CEO to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with Chelan County, by Resolution 

2025-20, for providing Coordinated Entry and Cart Distribution at Columbia Station. 

Support of Goals 
This agreement provides a central location for the CE and Cart Programs that support our most 
disadvantaged guests within the service area.  

Alternatives Considered 
Staff do not have any recommended alternatives. 

Impact on Budget (Capital / Operating) 
Minimal, this agreement will require Link Transit to pay for the same elements as stipulated in the 
original interlocal agreement with the County and Catholic Charities. 

Background  
Northwest Trailways has leased the office on the 1st floor of Columbia Station from August 1, 1997 to 
July 31, 2021, along with three (3) bus stalls off Columbia Street. In July 2021, Northwest Trailways 
closed their office due to financial and staffing challenges. TranCare, who is the local Medicaid broker 
and administers Link Transit’s TRIP-Link program, leased the space to administer the program then 
moved to their main office in the Sunnyslope area of Wenatchee.  

The County proposed the office space in Columbia Station be the new location for the Coordinated 
Entry Program. The office space has since been occupied by Chelan County in accordance with 
Resolution 2024-13 and the Interlocal Agreement authorized in June of 2024.  

The proposed Agreement grants Link Transit the power to share the cost of any future security needed 
to support the CE Program. Staff feel these cost-sharing clauses are reasonable and favorable to Link 
Transit. 

Attachments 

 Resolution 2025-20 

 Interlocal Agreement for Coordinated Entry and Crisis Response 

 Exhibit A – Floor Plans 

 Exhibit B – SOP Cart Program 

80



 

  

Page 1 of 2 Resolution 2025-20 Link Transit 
 

 

RESOLUTION 2025-20 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO EXECUTE AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN CHELAN COUNTY AND LINK TRANSIT FOR USE OF OFFICE SPACE TO 

PROVIDE COORDINATED ENTRY SERVICES  
 
WHEREAS; Link Transit is a Washington public transportation benefit area organized 

under RCW 36.57A to provide safe, reliable, and equitable public transportation services to the 
residents of Chelan and Douglas Counties; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chelan County provides Coordinated Entry (CE) services to unhoused and 

disadvantaged populations within Chelan and Douglas Counties; and 
 
WHEREAS, Link Transit owns and operates Columbia Station, located at 300 South 

Columbia Street, Wenatchee, Washington, which includes available office space suitable for 
locating community-based social service programs; and 

 
WHEREAS, both parties recognize the value and efficiency of co-locating CE Services 

at Columbia Station to improve accessibility for vulnerable community members who already 
rely on public transportation; and 

 
WHEREAS, Link Transit has further expressed an interest in supplying carts compliant 

with Link’s Carry-On Policy to eligible riders and designating Chelan County to manage program 
eligibility and distribution, thereby removing barriers to mobility for disadvantaged populations; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the attached interlocal agreement provides that Link Transit will make office 

space available at Columbia Station at no cost to Chelan County, purchase and deliver eligible 
carts, and provide security and janitorial services, while Chelan County will provide staff, 
furnishings, and cart program management; and 

 
WHEREAS, RCW 39.34 (the Interlocal Cooperation Act) authorizes public agencies to 

enter into cooperative agreements to make efficient use of their powers by enabling them to 
cooperate with other local government agencies; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Link Transit Board of Directors finds that entering into this Interlocal 

Agreement will advance community partnerships, improve access to social services, and further 
the agency’s mission of equitable and inclusive public transportation. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Link Transit hereby 
approves the attached Interlocal Agreement for Coordinated Entry with Chelan County.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution supersedes and replaces any prior 

resolutions or parts of resolutions that are inconsistent with the provisions set forth herein. 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Link Transit at a properly convened meeting 

thereof held on the 21st day of October 2025. 
 

81



 

  

Page 2 of 2 Resolution 2025-20 Link Transit 
 

 
 

CHELAN-DOUGLAS PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA AUTHORITY 
 

       
By Board Chair Loyd Smith 

 
The undersigned certifies that the foregoing Resolution was passed by the affirmative vote of _______ 
voting Board members of the Link Transit Board of Directors at a properly convened meeting of the Board 
at which a quorum of ______ voting and ______ non-voting Board members were present. 
 
 
       
Selina Danko, Clerk of the Board 

82



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT Chelan County and Link Transit 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Return Address: 

Ron Cridlebaugh 

Chelan County 

400 Washington Street, Suite 201 

Wenatchee, WA  98801 

 

The information contained in this boxed section is for recording purposes only pursuant to 

RCW 36.18 and RCW 65.04, and is not to be relied upon for any other purpose, and shall not 

affect the intent of the warranty contained in the document itself. 

 

Document Title: INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

Grantor(s): CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

Grantee(s): Chelan Douglas Public Transportation Benefit Area d/b/a LINK 

TRANSIT, a Washington municipal corporation 

Legal Description: N/A 

Assessor’s Tax Parcel ID: N/A  

 

Filed with the Auditor pursuant to RCW 39.34.040 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  

FOR COORDINATED ENTRY AND CRISIS RESPONSE 

 

 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is entered into between Chelan County 

(“County”), a Washington municipal corporation, and Chelan Douglas Public 

Transportation Benefit Area d/b/a Link Transit (“Link”), a public transportation benefit 

area.  

 

 WHEREAS, Link owns real property located at 300 South Columbia Street, 

Wenatchee, WA 98801 (“Columbia Station”) that includes office space; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County provides Coordinated Entry Services (“CE Services”) to 

disadvantaged and unhoused populations in Chelan and Douglas Counties; and 

 

WHEREAS, Link has available space at Columbia Station and desires to provide 

space for the County to provide CE Services; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the County desires to locate certain CE Services at Columbia 

Station to provide services to disadvantage individuals; and 

 WHEREAS, for mutual benefits the Parties agree that it is convenient and 

economical for Link to provide that office space at no charge to the County to locate their 

CE Services staff at Columbia Station; and  

83



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT Chelan County and Link Transit 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 

WHEREAS, Link redefined the allowable dimensions of carts carried onto Link 

vehicles in the Carry-on Policy in January of 2025; and 

 

WHEREAS, Link and the County agree there is need for carts to be made 

available at a reduced or zero cost to the most vulnerable of the ridership to ensure all 

can utilize the public transportation system, on the terms set out below; and  

 

WHEREAS, Link has expressed interest in supplying carts to riders who meet 

the program eligibility requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County has expressed interest in program management of cart 

distribution; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits contained herein, the 

Parties agree as follows: 

 

1.  Purpose and Scope.   

 

1.1 The purpose of this Interlocal Agreement is to effectuate the provision of 

CE Services to the disadvantaged and unhoused population in Chelan and 

Douglas Counties that congregate at Columbia Station. Additionally, this 

Interlocal Agreement provides for the management and provision of a 

program to deliver carts to the disadvantaged and unhoused riders of 

Link’s services that will be impacted by the referenced change in the carry-

on policy revision related to the allowable cart dimensions. 

 

1.2 Link agrees to: 

1.2.1 Provide, at no cost to the County, office space as depicted on the 

attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated by this reference, in the 

lower level of the Columbia Station Building for CE Services. Link 

reserves the right to use the under-stair storage in the office space 

that is being provided. Link will provide two security officers, 

provide janitorial services, and provide utilities with the exception 

of telephone and internet. At all times relevant to this Interlocal 

Agreement, including termination, Link shall be the sole owner of 

Columbia Station. Link shall not be responsible for providing any 

office furnishings, infrastructure, or building alterations necessary 

to facilitate the purposes of this Interlocal Agreement.  

 

1.2.2 Purchase, assemble, and deliver carts compliant with Link’s Carry-

On policy to Columbia Station’s storage units under the stairs 

located on the first floor, at no cost to the County. 

 

1.2.3 Notify the County of cart price changes for accurate collection of 

funds during program management. The make, model, price, and 

exact dimensions of the carts may change over the life of the 

contract. 

84



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT Chelan County and Link Transit 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 

1.2.4 Notify the County of changes to the Cart Program Standard 

Operating Procedures, the ‘SOP’, attached Exhibit B, which is 

incorporated by this reference, which shall be updated as 

needed. 

 

1.3 The County agrees to: 

 

1.3.1 Provide CE Services to unhoused and at-risk individuals in need of 

accessing federal, state or local assistance. The County will provide its staff 

with internet, telephone, office supplies and office furnishings. Minimum 

office hours for Chelan County staff will be 8:00am to 5:00pm. The County 

will reimburse Link for one third of the cost for an additional security 

officer if needed for safety and building coverage. Any additional 

improvements or modifications to the office space shall require written 

approval from Link. 

 

 1.3.2 Manage the Cart Program in accordance with the SOP. 

 

 1.3.3 Determine eligibility, issue carts, notify Link of need for cart 

restocking, record and report distributions, inventory levels, and any 

program details or changes to Link.  

 

1.3.4 Distribute inventory and distribution reports to Link on a monthly 

basis. 

 

2. Duration and Termination.   

 

2.1 This Interlocal Agreement, after first being executed by the Parties, shall 

become effective upon the date of filing with the Chelan County Auditor. 

 

2.2 This Interlocal Agreement shall remain in effect until terminated by 

agreement of all Parties, or by any Party as provided in this Agreement.  

 

2.2 Any Party may terminate this Interlocal Agreement by giving sixty (60) 

days’ written notice thereof to the other Party. The 60-day period shall be 

deemed to start on the date of receipt of notice. The Notice or agreement 

for termination must be filed with the Chelan County Auditor.  The County 

shall vacate the office space in Columbia Station within 60 days of receiving 

notice of termination of this Interlocal Agreement from any Party. 

 

3. Administration.    

 

The following shall be the Parties’ authorized representatives and contact persons 

for administration of this Agreement, communication, and service of all notices, 

except service of process: 

 

For the County: 

85



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT Chelan County and Link Transit 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Homeless Program Supervisor 

400 Douglas St. Ste. 201 

Wenatchee, WA 98801 

Phone: (509)667-6685 

Email: madison.calloway@Co.chelan.wa.us 

 

 

For Link: 

Customer Experience Supervisor    

300 S. Columbia St.    

Wenatchee, WA 98801   

Phone: (509)662-1155  

Email: guestservices@linktransit.com 

 

4. Financing and Budget.   

 

4.1  Each Party is responsible for its own budget necessary to facilitate the 

purposes of this Agreement.  

 

5. Amendment.   

 

 This Interlocal Agreement may only be amended by a writing signed by the Parties 

and following the same formalities as the original, including the requirement for 

filing with the County Auditor.   

 

6. Records. 

 

 Each Party shall maintain and make available for inspection, review, and audit 

the books, records, documents and other materials related to its performance 

under this Interlocal Agreement and as required by the Interlocal Agreement.  

 

7. Legal Relations. 

 

7.1 The Parties agree that the relation between the Parties shall be at all times 

under this Interlocal Agreement as an independent contractor.  Employees 

of Link are and will remain employees of Link and Employees of the County 

are and will remain employees of the County.   

 

7.2 Each Party shall defend, indemnify and hold the other Party, their officers, 

officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, 

injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 

in connection with any negligent, reckless or intentional act of or negligent 

or reckless failure to act by the party or any of its agents, employees, 

independent contractors in the performance of this Interlocal Agreement. 

 

7.3 In the event that a dispute arises regarding any matter addressed in or 

related to this Interlocal Agreement and before any other action, the 

Parties agree to first attempt to resolve the dispute by a face-to-face 

86



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT Chelan County and Link Transit 

Page 5 of 7 
 

meeting, or by a telephone call, between the Parties’ authorized 

representatives.  The Parties agree to participate in a good faith 

negotiation to resolve any such dispute.  

 

7.4 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Washington.  

 

7.5 The Chelan County Superior Court shall be the sole proper venue for any 

and all suits brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Interlocal 

Agreement. 

 

7.6 If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this 

Interlocal Agreement, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default, or 

misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of this Interlocal 

Agreement, each party shall pay its own attorney’s fees and costs incurred 

in that action, arbitration or proceeding. 

 

7.7 The County shall notify Link when informational tables from partnering 

agencies and non-profits are being setup near the CE Services office at least 

three (3) business days in advance. Link reserves the right to deny approval 

of such tables that interfere with the normal and customary business 

operations of Link. All applicable subcontractors and partners shall agree 

to section 7.2 of this Interlocal Agreement by operating or conducting 

business at Columbia Station. 

 

8. Applicable Laws.  

 

 The Parties, in performance of this Interlocal Agreement, shall abide by all 

applicable federal, Washington State and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, 

regulations, and rules. 

 

9. Interpretation and Order of Precedence.   

 

 9.1 This Agreement has been submitted to the scrutiny of the Parties and their 

counsel, and it shall be given a fair and reasonable interpretation in 

accordance with its words, without consideration or weight given to its 

being drafted by any Party or its counsel.   

 

9.2 

10. Waiver of Breach.  

 

 The waiver by any Party of the breach of any provision of this Agreement by 

another Party must be in writing and shall not operate or be construed as a waiver 

of any subsequent breach by such other party. 

 

 

 

 

11. No Assignment.  

87



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT Chelan County and Link Transit 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 

 No Party may assign its rights under this Interlocal Agreement, unless agreed to 

in a writing executed by authorized representatives of each Party. In the absence 

of a written agreement, any attempted assignment shall be void and shall 

constitute a material breach of this Interlocal Agreement. 

 

12. Incorporated Documents and Terms. 

 

  The following are incorporated into this Interlocal Agreement by reference: 

 

 12.1 Applicable federal, Washington State, and local laws, statutes, codes, 

ordinances, regulations, and rules; 

 

 12.2 Exhibits A and B; and 

 

 12.3 The recitals contained in the preamble to this Interlocal Agreement.   

 

13. Entire Agreement.   

 

13.1 This Interlocal Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed 

upon by and between the Parties.   

 

13.2 This Interlocal Agreement may be executed simultaneously or in 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which 

together shall be identical and constitute one and the same Interlocal 

Agreement.   

 

 13.3 No other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter 

of this Interlocal Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the 

parties hereto.   

 

14. Severability. 

 

 In the event any term or condition of this Interlocal Agreement or application 

thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not 

affect other terms, conditions or applications of this Agreement which can be given 

effect without the invalid term, condition, or application.  To this end the terms 

and conditions of this Interlocal Agreement are declared severable. 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the dates 

below. 

88



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT Chelan County and Link Transit 

Page 7 of 7 
 

BOARD OF CHELAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS                                 

  

  

________________________________  

Shon Smith, Chairman  

  

  

________________________________  

Kevin Overbay, Commissioner  

  

  

________________________________  

Brad Hawkins, Commissioner  

  

Attest: Anabel Torres Approved as to form: 

  

  

________________________ ________________________ 

Clerk of the Board  

 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

Date:  _____________ Date:_______________ 

  

  
 
 
 

CHELAN DOUGLAS PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA DBA LINK 

TRANSIT 
 

  

________________________________ Date:_______________ 

Nick Covey, CEO 

Link Transit 

 

 

 

 

Attest: Selina Danko Approved as to form: 

  

  

________________________ ________________________ 

Clerk of the Board General Counsel, Link Transit 

  

Date:  _____________ Date:_______________ 

 

89



I'·'
I 

I 
1. 

. , 

' 

FIRST FLOOR BOOM SCHEDULE 
JOO L066Y 
102 LQBBY 
103 PAGKA61: EXPRESS 
104 CLOSET 
I� �/DOR 
106 CORRIDOR 
10& MAINlENANGE 
110 DRIVER'S L.OUN6E 

Ill MEN'S RESTROOM 
112 WOMEN'S RESTROOM 
113 ELEVATOR MACHINE Rao,,,t 
114 JANITOR 
115 STAIR 112 
116 LEASED c;AFE 

i--
1 
I 

SO'-Ot EXIST. 

'

. : f 
I A2 ! I 
I
r-

--------7
1r--'- • -- ··• '-1 1

n I I I 

--

SEEENLAAre:> 

I/ 
I/ 

', r __,i�.....,
l 
I
I

PLAN SfftT AS.s--11 

I I 
DN j 

16 '-JO '.2'% EXIST.. 
�-�--· INFIU.S OF t,• GM.I 

.. ' . . . .. ... , . .

ffG 

,I 
. I 

I 

(/"r'PIGAL), VERIFY EXIT 
.Jl'IALL THIGKHESS 
UJ ORE OROERIN6 GM.I 

�-+--�-SHEAA Jl'IALL PER 
l:iTRl/G'TVRAL 
�N65 

SEE .51-EET T -A2.i 
FOR SITE JNFORMA TI0N 

SECOND FLOOR ROOM SCHEDULE 
I\ 
1, 

/ __ /
200 L066Y 
201 VESTT!ll/1.f 
203 51:ATIN6 AREA 
204 aJ5TOMER SERYIGE 
205 LOSTtfot.ND 
206 OFFICE 
207 STAIR 113 
20'! CORRIDOR 

210 MEGHANIGAL ROOM 
211 i'IOMEM'5 RESTROOM 
212 M:11'5 RESTROOM 
214 /..EASEP SPAG.E 
215 STAIR 112 

1 

j> 
!!l 

;/' 
j> !!l 

;to 
j> !!l 

;to 
j> 
!!l 

I 

I
I 

I 

I 

� 

� ---"f-+---- PROVIDE HORIZONTAL MT!., 

4'-4 
u 

SEE 6.EGTRIGAL 
Pl.AN FOR 51:RVJGE 
PANEi.SiN 1HIS 
AREA. 

. . 6!.0GKIN6 GENTEREP AT 
,•-o f 7'-0 AS(NE Fifi FLR 
THISl'W.L 

1+---lc---H :r
U\ 

SEE SfftT T-A2i, 

3 

FoR SITE JIF�TION 

. �I .,__.,_,_._ •• _.•·-·-------�"'+--SHEAR--·1'4AU._,,�,Pl:R�··-_._1'-'-------_....,l _____ ------(D
I STf!I/C'Tl/RAL I I 

: � : : 

4 ® © @ 
--,-- PIBST FLOOR PLAN 

. .· . > . -�!,��-�;·

The DOB,A.ssociates,, Ps>·,, ,,; 
A:rohiteot1, •11.d Planntl't • ,

\ , , • A �;tloiil �-��-
BOO DOftNlt BulldmQ, . W..,wto11di. �� �ao1 . (Jot�·- '8f11�•� 

II&' .• l'-0 •

PAJF'. . APPR REVISIONS Appfoved By 

,_:"' 
�. 
j> 
� 

;to 
j> !!l 

,_:"' 
·�
;to
j>!!l

SEEENLAR6ED· I 
PLAN SHEETA6.I --1 

I 
Slf;ARJl'IALLPER I STRl/G'TllRAL 
DAAl'!IN65 ---<-.J 

I 

3 >--+-----

2 >---+--+---

;/"' 
j> 
!!l 

, . 

I 
I I 

SEE l:Nl.AR6ED >,_ I ' • · • 
PLANSHEETA6.I� '--.

@

I
·
. 

_ •• __ . _ . I.-.·· .. •• 
. 

_ 

. • STR!IG7VRAL
. . ·<t SH!:ARJl'IALLPER

�. A B DRAl'i/NeS �, • . 

Pl.AN NORTH SECOND FLOOR PLAN ia---'-'--"-._-
V & '• I'-o

' ' ' . ' . , '. ,,•;,' ' 
• ',• ,.: ' ','.C 

• ':·::>·- ·, . ' __ ,'
�TctEE,W'A• ••

.. -\ 

•. cBEtAN-00UJ .. ''·. ..····••·· .. ·.• ...• , .. ···\ • ·•••• <; j�ANSPO�T�t· �;�,--
.• ·····•·. · ; '.�sr,.��tf ij,;.�;:,,y

90

earcher
Highlight



Cart Program – S.O.P. 

Cart Program Distribution and Reporting 
PURPOSE 

To ensure consistency when distributing and reporting on the Cart Program.  The 

program is to assist those folks who could not otherwise afford to obtain a folding 

shopping cart that meets the size requirements spelled out in Link Transit’s Carry-on 

Policy. 

1. Distributing a Cart:

a. Guest presents one of the Link Transit Carry-on Cards. (There are 3)

i. Fill out the Cart Program Attestation Document (CPAD)

ii. Attach the Card to the document

iii. Update the Distribution Log/spreadsheet

iv. Update the Inventory Log/spreadsheet

v. File the CPAD along with the Card the guest brought.

b. The guest does not present one of the three Link Transit Carry-on Cards.

i. Fill out the CPAD

ii. Update the Distribution Log/Spreadsheet

iii. Update the Inventory Log/Spreadsheet

iv. File the CPAD.

2. If payment for the cart is required:

a. Indicated on the CPAD is they participant is to pay 50% or 100% of the cost of the cart.

b. Send the Guest with the CPAD or Walk the guest-to-Guest Services.

i. Guest Services will take payment and staple the receipt to the CPAD.

c. The participant returns to CC with the CPAD and proof of payment.

d. Distribute the cart to the participant

91



3. Ordering More Carts

a. When the inventory gets to 3 or fewer, it’s time to order more carts.

b. Email CartProgram@linktransit.com to request additional carts.

i. A Link Staff member will contact procurement to have them assembled and delivered by 
Facilities to __________ on the first floor of Columbia Station.

4. Monthly Reporting:

a. Email the Distribution Log/spreadsheet and Inventory Log/spreadsheet to

CartProgram@linktransit.com

b. At the Monthly Meeting

i. Bring a printout of the Distribution Log and the corresponding CPADs

The following folks are part of the group email CartProgram@linktransit.com: 

Gabrielle Walker – Link Transit 

Jake Austin – Link Transit 

Jennifer Therien – Link Transit 

Pedro Barrera – Link Transit 

Trisha Chang – Link Transit 

Ross Miller – Link Transit 

Ramon Cox – Link Transit 

Sam Miller – Link Transit 

Deborah Paine – Link Transit 

92

mailto:CartProgram@linktransit.com


1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
October 21, 2025 Board Meeting 

“ACTION AGENDA” ITEM – SUMMARY REPORT 

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors 

FROM: Samantha Miller & Ed Archer 

SUBJECT: Increasing Bus Garage Contingency Funds 

Issue 
RCW 82.08.816 (expired July 1, 2025) specifically exempted electric vehicle batteries and infrastructure 

from incurring sales taxes. Based on the RCW language, Link’s project advertisement solicited bids that 

excluded sales taxes for the entire bus garage project. After discussions with the Department of 

Revenue, it was determined that some of this project would not qualify for tax exemption status. The 

contractor, Rimmer and Roeter, and Link Transit staff worked with the Department of Revenue to 

determine the actual exempt status for the project. 

The anticipated sales tax for the Bus Garage Construction project is estimated to be $150,000. Staff is 

requesting an additional $100,000 to be included in the contingency fund to cover any shortfall due to 

the sales tax issue.  

Recommendation 
Authorize an $100,000 increase in contingency funds for the construction of the Bus Garage, with a 

construction total not to exceed $13,410,573 to Rimmer & Roeter Construction, Inc. 

Support of Goals 
Link Transit’s goal is to provide safe, quality service to the communities we serve. The construction of 
this Bus Garage will allow Link enough operational space to continue the Vision 2020 expansion, 
increasing the quality and coverage of service.  

Alternatives Considered 
No recommended alternatives. 

Impact on Project Budget (Capital / Operating) 
Total Project Budget: $17,000,000 

Actual Estimated Cost: $15,472,390 

Under Budget: $1,527,610 

Estimated Rimmer & Roeter Cost Breakdown: ($13,410,573) 

◼ $12,676,736 - Rimmer & Roeter bid amount

◼ $633,837 for 5% contingency

◼ $100,000 for contingency increase requested above

Background  
Construction is currently projected to finish in late November or December of 2025. The bid awarded to 
Rimmer & Roeter was 7.5% under the initial Engineer’s Estimate. Staff anticipate the requested 
increase of $100,000 to the contingency funds will cover any additional costs, including the unforeseen 

93



2 
 

sales tax. The total cost is still not calculated, however staff anticipate coming in close to under the 
approved budget with the inclusion of the additional $100,000. 

Attachments 

 None 

94



1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
October 21, 2025 Board Meeting 

“ACTION AGENDA” ITEM – SUMMARY REPORT 

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors 

FROM: Sam Miller, Contract/Procurement Specialist 

SUBJECT: Purchase of Four 40-Foot Electric Buses and Five ABB Chargers from BYD/RIDE 

Issue 
Staff secured a Washington State Green Transportation Grant for four 40–foot battery-electric buses 
and five ABB vehicle chargers, which will pay for approximately 54% of the costs in the attached 
quotes. Staff is requesting Board authorization to purchase the buses and chargers from BYD/RIDE 
from the Department of Enterprise Systems contract #06719.   

Recommendation 
Authorize the purchase of four (4) 40-foot electric buses and five (5) ABB chargers from BYD Coach & 
Bus LLC in an amount not to exceed $5,819,581.68, plus applicable sales tax, pending DES approval. 

Support of Goals 
The purchase of these vehicles and chargers will allow Coach Operators to transport guests safely & 
reliably by increasing the number of available vehicles in the fleet. 

Alternatives Considered 
Staff do not recommend postponing this purchase due to the state’s grant timeline. 

Impact on Budget (Capital / Operating) 
The WSDOT Green Transportation Grant of $3,400,000 will reimburse approximately 54% of the total 
cost requested above. Funds will be allocated in the 2026 and 2027 Capital Budgets as no payment is 
required before delivery and acceptance of the vehicles and chargers.  

Background  
These vehicles will be purchased through the DES contract and are projected to deliver in 16 months 
from the date of purchase. Chargers are expected to deliver in 2026. 

Buses: $1,215,237.42 (per vehicle) – includes shipping 
Chargers: $191,726.40 (per charger) – includes shipping and all components needed 

Staff anticipate paying sales tax on these vehicles due to the electric vehicle sales tax changes 
effective 7/1/2025. The quotes show potential taxes for vehicles and chargers of up to $512,123.19. 

Procurement Staff reviewed the attached bus quote and determined it to be fair & reasonable when 
compared to the Independent Cost Analysis performed on October 13, 2025. 

Attachments 

• BYD.RIDE Quote – Buses

• BYD.RIDE Quote – Chargers

95



DATE
Quotation #

Phone: (626) 770-4678

Quotation For: Quotation valid until:

Prepared by:

TERMS

Net 30

ITEM # QTY
TOTAL AMOUNT

(USD)

1 4 1,100,000.00$         4,400,000.00$                

2 4 98,096.42$                392,385.68$                     
3 4 7,987.00$                   31,948.00$                       

4 4 9,154.00$                   36,616.00$                       

4,860,949.68$                

427,763.57$                     

5,288,713.25$                

Add-ons (see separate sheet)
Delivery Fee

InductEV - Installation & Commissioning
- Material to be provided by customer
- Same design as PO#10049054-000
- Commissiong up to 10 hrs per bus (estimated)
- Additional hours, if required, will be charged separately.

Subtotal 

Estimated Sales Tax (8.8%)

Total (USD)

*NOTE: 
1. Potential tax exemption may be applied (https://dor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/2022-02/sn_19_ElectricVehicleBuses.pdf)
2. Add-ons pricing is estimated and may be adjusted after specification finalization.
3. PO acceptance is needed from RIDE before PO execution.
4. Seller shall reserve the right to adjust the Purchase Price and charge Buyer accordingly to reflect all or a portion of the existing or hereafter levied import duties and 
tariffs, fees, assessments, charges, and any other taxes, however designated, related to the importation of the equipment and manufacturing supply chain.
5. Bus acceptance and payment will be based solely on the buses meeting the agreed specifications and acceptance requirements, excluding any IEV-related scopes. 
Any delay or issue involving the IEV product or installation will not affect or delay the acceptance or payment of the buses.

RIDE 40' K9MD (Washington State Contract # 06719-01)
- Battery Capacity Nameplate 505 kWh/Usable 455 kWh
- DC SAE J1772 Design; Charger not included

Comments or Special Instructions: None

SALES PERSON SHIP DATE F.O.B Point

Jason Yan Estimated 12-18 Months After Spec Finalization Wanatchee, WA

DESCRIPTION
UNIT PRICE

(USD)

LINK Transit JJ Zhang

                                 BYD Coach & Bus LLC, d/b/a RIDE Coach & Bus Quotation
                                                     "Real Innovation Delivered with Excellence" 10/14/2025
3465 E. Foothill Blvd, 2nd Floor JY06132025LT-K9-2
Pasadena, CA 91107

Quotation Validity: 30 days * see note

11/13/2025

96



        
                 BYD Coach & Bus LLC d/b/a RIDE Coach & Bus Date 10/14/2025

               "Real Innovation Delivered with Excellence" Quotation # JY06132025LT

11/13/2025

Add on
#

Description
Qty

 per Bus
Unit Price

(USD)  

Extended Price per 
Bus

(USD)

1 Hot Start 1
 delete 

(requested by 
customer) 

 delete 
(requested by 

customer) 
2 Auxiliary Heating /Water Defroster - diesel heater 1  $                 11,082.06 11,082.06$                 
3 Exterior - Customized Paint 1 delete delete
4 Bike Rack - Sportworks - Apex 2 FAT, Black 1  $                   3,305.47 3,305.47$                   
5 Tires + Wheel - Two front tires to be Michelin tires 1  $                   1,564.54 1,564.54$                   

6 Tires + Wheel - Four rear tires to be GOODYEAR Endurance TSD 305/70 R22.5 1  $                   3,671.16 3,671.16$                   

7 Angel Trax Camera System 1  $                   8,210.85 8,210.85$                   
8 Driver's Seat  -  USSC 9110-80330801720121-03B1 1  $                       670.96 670.96$                       

9
ITS - Avail - Installation and Materials
- On-site comissioning included by Avail
- Same design as PO#10049054-000

1  $                 57,256.98 57,256.98$                 

10 Battery - Optima Battery P/N 850-160- Model # D31T (2PCS) 1 Included Included
11 Heated Mirrors - 2 mirrors per bus (Hadley) 1  $                       573.80 573.80$                       
12 Flooring - Altro - Transflor, Chroma, Quattro 2775 1 Included Included
13 American Seating Insight 1 deleted deleted
14 Seating Fabric - All - Camira P/N EHR309 1 deleted deleted
15 Q-Straint - 4 Position 1 Included Included
16 Destination Sign  - White Color - IO CONTROLS 1  $                   1,571.40 1,571.40$                   

17
InductEV - 300kW Vehicle Receiver Kit w/ FOD Cameras
- 4-Pad Inductive Receiver + Display 1-Year Warranty

1 delete deleted

18 USSC UV PHI 1 deleted deleted

19
Ster Gemini Passenger Seating
- Nuvant Match Plus Azul Oscuro #1745419 vinyl

1  $                 10,189.20 10,189.20$                 

TOTAL (USD)  $                  98,096.42 

Quotation For:

LINK Transit Quotation Valid Until:

Add on List 

97



DATE 10/15/2025
Quotation # JY06162025LINK-ABB-3

Phone: (626) 770-4678 30 days * see note
Quotation For: Quotation valid until: 11/14/2025

Prepared by: JJ Zhang

TERMS

Net 30

ITEM # QTY
UNIT PRICE

(USD)
TOTAL AMOUNT

(USD)

1 5 180,352.80$             901,764.00$  

2 5 Included Included

3 5 Included Included

4 5 5,244.00$                  26,220.00$  

5 1 12,000.00$                12,000.00$  

6 5 1,581.60$                  7,908.00$  

7 20 429.60$  8,592.00$  

8 5 429.60$  2,148.00$  

Subtotal 958,632.00$  

84,359.62$  

1,042,991.62$  

Quotation Validity:

BYD Coach & Bus LLC, d/b/a RIDE Coach & Bus Quotation
Build Your Dreams

3465 E. Foothill Blvd, 2nd Floor
Pasadena, CA 91107

LINK Transit, WA

Comments or Special Instructions: None

SALES PERSON SHIP DATE Delivery Term

Jason Yan 30-32 weeks ARO Wenatchee, WA

DESCRIPTION

ABB HVC300kW 4:1 Power Cabinet, 480V input
*The system include 5-year of Connected Services – Charger Connect and
Web Solution for Monitoring and Operations.
Non Buy America Compliant Model

Total (USD)

*NOTE: 
1. Potential tax exemption may be applied (https://dor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/2022-02/sn_19_ElectricVehicleBuses.pdf)
2. Payment Term: Equipment: 30% upon confirmation of PO and 70% upon shipment of the Equipment. Services: 100% upon delivery.
3. PO will be issued and governed by Washington State Contract # 06719-01
4. Seller shall reserve the right to adjust the Purchase Price and charge Buyer accordingly to reflect all or a portion of the existing or hereafter levied import duties and 
tariffs, fees, assessments, charges, and any other taxes, however designated, related to the importation of the equipment and manufacturing supply chain.

4x HVC ChargeDock NA, CCS1 250A 9.5mts (20 in total)
Note: This ChargeDock is for ceiling mounting, and it is not possible to use
it with a pedestal

HVC 360 stainless steel power cabinet foundation to install on existing
floor. Includes side cover panels and grommet plate.
Note: the metal base is mandatory for each HVC360 power cabinet.

Basic Charger 101 Training
Purpose: To get high level understanding of charger technology 
Duration: 4–8 hours (classroom + visit charger in smaller groups)
Audience: General users, site operators, and stakeholders
Class size: up to 8 attendees
Location: End User / Owner / Operator location – Equipment must be present
Content:
-Fundamentals of DC charging and influencing factors on charging speed
-Basic operation: how to perform a charge session
-Overview of hardware and safety measures (including emergency procedures)
-Introduction to backend monitoring tools and user profiles
Travel time and expenses included

Freight per each HVC Power Cabinet.
Unloading of the goods is not included

Freight per each HVC Depot Box.
Unloading of the goods is not included.

Freight per each accessory including pedestals, ground metal foundations.
Unloading of the goods is not included.

Estimated Sales Tax (8.8%)

Onsite Commissioning Fee per HVC300-4 (includes four DCB)
Includes 2 hours of drive time by technician - remote sites may incur an additional 
travel-time surcharge.

98



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
October 21, 2025, Board Meeting 
“ACTION ITEM” AGENDA SUMMARY 

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors 

FROM: Ed Archer, Maintenance Manager 

SUBJECT: Proposed Vehicle Surplus List 

Issue 
Staff are requesting Board approval to surplus two vehicles that have exceeded their useful life and 
have been replaced.  

Recommendation 
Authorize the surplus of the following vehicles: 

Two – mini vans numbered: 
1. 428 a 2018 dodge caravan Vin #2C7WDGBG9JR188027
2. 430 a 2018 dodge caravan Vin#2C7WDGBG4JR188033
- Estimated fair-market value - $5,000 to $10,000 per vehicle

Support of Goals 
Once a vehicle has reached the end of its useful life or is no longer needed, the vehicle or equipment is 
considered surplus. The surplus of vehicles increases the efficiency of staff who no longer need to 
maintain and service vehicles that are no longer useful 

Alternatives Considered 
None.   

Impact on Budget (Capital / Operating) 
Link Transit anticipates receiving between $5,000 and $10,000 per vehicle. These funds will be put 
back into the general fund. 

Background 
As vehicles reach their useful life they are replaced with newer, more efficient vehicles.  Link Transit’s 
Surplus Policy states that Board approval must be obtained for any surplus property with an estimated 
value or combined estimated value of $5,000 or more. 

Link Transit may use multiple avenues to surplus these vehicles including Booker Auctions, (a vehicle 
broker), GovDeals.com (an online approved auction site), transfer to other government agencies, 
transfer to a non-profit, or scrap the vehicle if it is no longer in working order. These two vehicles will 
likely be transferred to a non-profit. 

99



1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
October 21, 2025 Board Meeting 

“ACTION AGENDA” ITEM – SUMMARY REPORT 

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors 

FROM: Nick Covey 

SUBJECT: Hay Canyon Property 

Issue 
Link Transit purchased 2.17 acres in Hay Canyon for $710,000 in 2022 for the use of a future park-and-
ride lot. The original intent was to carve off the amount of land needed for the park-and-ride and sell the 
remaining portion. The land was subdivided into two lots, .28 acres for the park-and-ride lot and 1.89 
acres for surplus. The 1.89 acres was appraised for a value of $535,000. An offer has been submitted 
for $545,000, less closing costs. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommend accepting the offer of $545,000, less closing costs for the sale of the Hay Canyon 
property. 

Support of Goals 
Selling unused land is a benefit to Link. There will be no future costs for maintenance and fencing and 
the remaining portion of the land allows for a future park-and-ride lot serving the citizens of Chelan 
County. 

Alternatives Considered 
Keep the land, which is not needed for any future expansion of services. This is not recommended, 
there is no future need of this land for Link Transit. 

Impact on Budget (Capital / Operating) 
Link Transit will net approximately $505,000, which will be put into Link’s facility reserve account. 

Background  
Link Transit looks for opportunities to provide safe park-and-ride lots for Link Transit guests. Staff have 
determined that this is a good location for a park-and-ride lot to better serve Cashmere. A preliminary 
design has been developed and as Link continues to grow, this lot will be developed to serve our 
guests on Route 22, serving Cashmere and Leavenworth.  

Attachments 

 none 

100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
October 21, 2025 Board Meeting 

“ACTION AGENDA” ITEM – SUMMARY REPORT 

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors 

FROM: Shawn Larson, Safety Officer 

SUBJECT: Link Transit’s updated Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan 

Issue 
The Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) has been updated with Link Transit’s 2026 
Safety Performance Targets (SPT).  Since the PTASP has been updated for 2026 it will be out of 
compliance with the FTA’s rules until it is approved by the Board of Directors. 

Recommendation 
Board approval of the updated version of the PTASP as presented. 

Support of Goals 
Link Transit is estimating more revenue miles in 2026, and the SPTs should reflect that change. This 
will help Link Transit to continue providing safe, reliable, and efficient services.  

Alternatives Considered 
Not updating the PTASP.  This is not a realistic option as Link Transit is estimating more revenue miles 
next year. The estimated increase in miles will change the per-100,000-mile target which would require 
an update to the PTASP.  

Impact on Budget (Capital / Operating) 
None 

Background  
49 CFR part 673 went into effect in 2019 requiring all operators of a public transportation system that 
receives Federal financial assistance under 49 U.S.C chapter 53 to create and implement a Public 
Transportation Agency Safety plan.  49 CFR part 673 requires a yearly review and updates as needed. 

Attachments 

 Redline version of PTASP 

122



1 

1. Transit Agency Information
Transit Agency Name Link Transit 

Transit Agency Address 2700 Euclid Ave. Wenatchee, WA , 98801 

Name and Title of 
Accountable Executive 

Nick Covey,  Chief Executive Officer 

Name of Chief Safety 
Officer or SMS 
Executive 

Lynn Bourton, Administrative Services Manager 

Mode(s) of Service 
Covered by This Plan 

Motorbus (DO) 
Demand Response (DO) 

List All FTA Funding 
Types (e.g., 5307, 5310, 
5311) 

5307, 5339, 5311, 5310 

Mode(s) of Service 
Provided by the Transit 
Agency (Directly 
operated or contracted 
service) 

Motorbus (DO) 
Demand Response (DO) 
Demand Rosponse (Contracted) 

Does the agency 
provide transit services 
on behalf of another 
transit agency or entity? 

Yes No 
X 

Description of 
Arrangement(s) 

Name and Address of 
Transit Agency(ies) or 
Entity(ies) for Which 
Service Is Provided 

N/A 

2. Plan Development, Approval, and Update

Name of Entity That 
Drafted This Plan 

Chelan-Douglas Transportation Benefit Area (D.B.A Link Transit) 

Signature by the 
Accountable Executive 

Signature of Accountable Executive Date of Signature 

Approval by the Board 
of Directors or an 
Equivalent Authority 

Name of Individual/Entity That Approved This 
Plan 

Date of Approval 

Relevant Documentation (title and location) 

Certification of 
Compliance 

Name of Individual/Entity That Certified This 
Plan 

Date of Certification 

123



 

2 
 

  

Relevant Documentation (title and location) 

 

 

Version Number and Updates 

Record the complete history of successive versions of this plan. 

Version 
Number 

Section/Pages Affected Reason for Change Date Issued 

1  New plan  

2 Pgs. 
1,3,4,5,6,11,A-1 

Update to SPT, added section 9 due to 

Infrastructure bill, CEO change, update to 

49 CFR part 673 

 

3 Pg.3 Change of safety performance targets  

    

This ASP addresses all applicable requirements and standards as set forth in FTA’s Public 

Transportation Safety Program and the National Public Transportation Safety Plan 

 

Annual Review and update of plan 

The Safety plan will be reviewed and updated at least annually if not more frequently.  Annual 

reviews will begin in the second quarter of each year.  This review will be conducted to ensure 

the plan is still up to federal and state laws and best practices.  The performance targets will be 

updated in the fourth quarter after all the performance data for the current year has been 

reviewed. 

The safety plan will be reviewed and if necessary updated on an as needed basis: 

1. When Link Transit’s determines it’s approach to mitigating safety deficiencies is ineffective,  

2. Makes significant changes to service delivery 

3. When new processes and procedures are introduced that may impact safety 

4. Changes or re-prioritization of resources  available to support SMS 

5. Significant changes to the organizational structure 

  

124



 

3 
 

3. Safety Performance Targets 

Purpose: Safety performance targets are yearly goals to help ensure we are reaching our 

objective of providing a safe working environment for our employees and safe reliable 

transportation to our guests.   

Mode Fatalities Fatalities 

(100K 

VRM) 

Injuries Injuries 

(100K 

VRM) 

Safety 

Events  

Events 

(100K 

VRM) 

SR 

Failure/ 

VRM  

OJI 

Fixed 0 0 31 .1003 15 .0317 20,000 
7 

Demand 

Response 

0 0 1 .136 52 .8313 20,000 

RideShare 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000 N/A 
Calculation for VRM: (# expected*100,000)/Revenue miles estimation.  Estimated miles: 2,900,000 FR, 

775600,000 PT, 325800,000 RS 

Definitions and Acronyms: 
VRM- Vehicle Revenue Miles 

SR- System Reliability- System Reliability: mean distance between major mechanical failures by mode. 

OJI- On the job injury: an injury requiring more than first aid that occurred to an employee of Link 

Transit while in the course of performing their job duties. 

Injuries: any injury which: (1) Requires hospitalization for more than 48 hours, commencing within 7 

days from the date the injury was received; (2) Results in a fracture of any bone (except simple fractures 

of fingers, toes, or noses); (3) Causes severe hemorrhages, nerve, muscle, or tendon damage; (4) Involves 

any internal organ; (5) Involves second- or third-degree burns, or any burns affecting more than 5 percent 

of the body surface; (6) immediate transport away from the scene for medical attention 

Major mechanical failures:  Major mechanical system failures prevent a vehicle from completing or 

starting a scheduled revenue trip because actual movement is limited or because of safety concerns. 

Examples of major bus failures include breakdowns of brakes, doors, engine cooling systems, steering, 

axles, and suspension. 

Safety Event: Safety event means an unexpected outcome resulting in injury or death; damage to 

or loss of the facilities, equipment, rolling stock, or infrastructure of a public 

transportation system; or damage to the environment. 

 

 

Safety Performance Target Coordination 
 

Link Transit will transmit their approved Safety Performance Targets to the Chelan-Douglas 

Transportation Council (CDTC) our local Metropolitan Planning Organization.  To the 

maximum extent practicable Link Transit will coordinate with WSDOT and CDTC to set state 

and local Safety Performance Targets. 

Date Performance targets are transmitted:  ________ CDTC ________ WSDOT 

 

 

125



 

4 
 

4: Safety Management Policy 
Purpose: 

Safety management policy documents Link Transit’s commitment to safety, sets the agencies 

safety objectives, lists the responsibilities and accountabilities of all employees in regards to 

safety. 

Policy Statement 
Providing a safe working environment for our employees and safe reliable transportation to our 

guests is our primary objective, which is why the management of safety is our top priority.   We 

will work towards this objective by: making sure the right resources are available to implement 

and continually improve our Safety Management System and leveraging front line employees’ 

knowledge through the safety reporting program.  

Supporting and improving safety in the workplace is an organization wide commitment starting 

with the Chief Executive Officer. 

 

Link Transit is committed to:  

 

• Supporting an organizational culture that fosters safe operational practices and 

encourages safety reporting and communication. 

• Allocating the necessary resources to implement the safety management plan and to 

continually improve our safety performance.  

• Focusing on proactive approaches to recognize and mitigate hazards. 

• Ensuring that no action will be taken against any employee who discloses safety concerns 

through the safety reporting program, unless the disclosure indicates beyond any 

reasonable doubt, an illegal act, gross negligence, or deliberate or willful disregard of 

regulations and procedures. 

• Training all employees adequately on our safety management system to identify, analyze, 

and mitigate hazards for a safer workplace.  

• Effective communication with all levels of the organization to ensure information is 

flowing up to executive management and down to field employees.   

• Ensuring hazards are mitigated to as low as reasonably practical. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Nick Covey, Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

126



5 

Safety Management Policy communication 
Once the safety management policy statement has been updated and approved, the statement will 

be communicated to all employees.  The statement will be put on the ICN for a month and then a 

hardcopy will be posted on the bulletin boards at Operations and Columbia Station.  An 

employee will be able to receive a copy at any time through the shared files or by requesting one 

from the Safety Officer.  During new hire orientation, new employees will receive a copy of Link 

Transit’s policy statement.  When the Safety Management Policy is changed all employees will 

receive a copy of the policy and be required to sign that they received a copy of the new policy.  

If no changes are made to the Safety Management Policy, the policy will be emailed to all 

employees for review annually. 

Authorities, Responsibilities, and Accountabilities 

Accountable 

Executive 

The CEO 

 serves as Link Transit’s Accountable Executive with the following 

authorities, accountabilities, and responsibilities under this plan: 

• Has the overall authority and responsibility over Link Transit’s SMS

• Has the responsibility to make sure resources (employees/money)

are available to support a safe transit system

• Ensure safety is a factor when discussing and designing capital

projects and other agency wide projects to ensure foreseen and

predictable hazards are either eliminated or engineered to as low as

reasonably practical

• Ensure Link Transit’s SMS is effectively implemented, throughout

the agency

• Maintains responsibility for carrying out the agency’s Transit Asset

Management Plan (TAM)

• Review, follow and provision appropriate resources in response to

directives from federal, state and local health officials regarding

pandemics

Chief Safety Officer: The Administrative Services Manager serves as Link Transit’s Chief Safety 

Officer with the following authorities, accountabilities, and responsibilities 

under this plan: 

• Oversees the day-to-day implementation and operation of the SMS

• Develops Link Transit’s ASP and SMS policies and procedures

• Advises the General Manager on  SMS progress and status

Agency Leadership Agency Leadership is made up of the Operations manager, Finance/Chief of 

Staff, Maintenance manager, and Administrative Services manager have the 

following authorities, accountabilities, and responsibilities: 

• Oversee day to day operation of the SMS in their departments

• Setting departmental goals for event reduction

• Implementing safety strategies to meet those goals

• Work with other department managers to resolve organizational

hazards.

127



6 

Key Staff The key staff listed below have the following authorities, accountabilities, 

and responsibilities: 

Safety Officer: 

• Facilitates Link Transits Safety Committee

• Reports SMS progress to the Administrative Services Manager

• Gathers and analyzes the data from the Employee Safety Reporting

Program

Safety committee: 

• Analyze hazards for acceptability

• Review safety suggestions

• Gather information on hazards from other employees

• Assist in performing safety audits and walkthroughs

Supervisors: 

• Provide guidance and support to employees

• Assist during investigations

• Assist in implementing the SMS program

• Assist in collecting data and performing audits

all employees: 

• Stop any action that may cause death or serious injury to themselves

or someone else

• Following safety procedures and warning signs.

5: Safety Risk Management 

Purpose: 

Safety risk management is a process to identify, analyze and mitigate hazards. This will provide 

a formal process to allow Link Transit to reduce hazards for our employees and guests. 

Safety Hazard Identification: 

Link Transit will use proactive and reactive methods to identify hazards before an event happens 

or to learn from what happened and ensure a similar situation does not occur. 

Proactive: 

Employee safety reporting:  Employee safety reporting will be made up of two voluntary 

programs; near miss reporting, safety suggestion, assault on transit worker reporting.  The near 

miss program will allow Link Transit to focus on underlying issues that may lead to an event or 

injury.  The safety suggestion program allows all employees to bring safety concerns to 

management. See program in appendix A.   

Safety Committee:   The Safety Committee will be made up of 11 employees representing all 

departments and locations at Link Transit.  Eight (8) of the members will be employee elected 

members.  The committee member break down will be as follows:  

(* represents employer selected member) 

128



 

7 
 

4 Coach Operators 

1 Maintenance employee  

1 Facilities employee  

1 Office member from Operations Base 

1 Office member from Columbia Station 

1 Road Supervisor* 

1 Planner* 

1 Trainer* 

 

The Safety Officer will be the facilitator of the Safety Committee.  The committee will meet at a 

minimum of once a month or more frequently depending on circumstances.  A chairperson will 

be elected by the committee every year in December to take effect January of the following year.  

The term of an employee elected member will be one year.  An employee may be on the 

committee for multiple terms.   Employees may only vote for the member that represents them 

(i.e. Coach Operator for Coach Operator).  Safety Committee meetings will be held in 

accordance with WAC 296-800-13020. 

Walk around inspections:  Weekly walk around inspections of Columbia Station and the 

Operations Base will be done by the Safety Officer.  One inspection a month will be done with a 

member of the Safety Committee as well as the Safety Officer.   

The purpose of the safety committee member is to act as the subject matter expert in their 

operating area, as well as to mitigate any complacency that may occur by the Safety Officer who 

routinely does the inspections.  They bring insights of the day to day operations and how well the 

safety mitigation strategies are working.  The member may identify unseen/unrecognized hazards 

due to their expertise in that field. The inspections will look at both Operations Base and 

Columbia Station.  The inspections will look at the interior and exterior of the buildings (form in 

appendix B).  The inspection will cover: 

Emergency and First Aid equipment 

Employee Information Bulletin Board  

Walking/Working Surface  

Ladders 

Machinery, equipment and power tools  

Personal Protective equipment 

Hazardous Chemicals 

 

Data 

Data collected will be analyzed to look for trends that may lead to unsafe actions or scenarios.   

The data also serves to show whether the mitigation strategies put in place are working or 

needing to be revisited.  Lastly collecting data will allow us to catch practical drift sooner and 

correct it. Data sources include but not limited to the following: 

Near miss reporting  

129



 

8 
 

Safety suggestions 

Inspections  

Third party information (LNI, WSTIP, FTA, and other agencies) 

Injury and event investigations 

Guest comments 

 

Reactive: 

Safety Investigations:  Link Transit will use root-cause analysis techniques to investigate all 

vehicle events, on the job injuries, and near misses.  The root-cause technique will provide Link 

Transit with valuable insight into the reason the situation occurred and allow us to mitigate the 

hazards before another situation arises.  

 

Safety risk assessment: 
Once a hazard has been identified using one of the above methods a safety risk assessment will 

be conducted to assess the severity and probability of an unfortunate outcome occurring.  The 

severity will be based on the worst possible outcome that is likely to be expected based on data 

or other information from a similar situation.   

A hazard analysis form will be filled out (appendix C).  A hazard analysis at a minimum will 

break down a task into hazard categories and each category will be rated by severity/probability.   

 

Safety risk mitigation: 
After a hazard has been analyzed a mitigation strategy will be put into place to reduce the risk to 

as low as reasonably practical.  Link Transit will select one or more of the following mitigation 

strategies (in order of effectiveness): 

1. Elimination- completely remove the hazard. 

2. Substitution- substitute the product with a less hazardous product. 

3. Engineering controls- methods built into the design of equipment or process to minimize 

a hazard. 

4. Work practices- training, policies, and procedures to reduce the hazard. 

5. Personal protective equipment (PPE) - equipment to protect the employee from the 

hazard. 

 

In the Safety Risk Register, Link Transit’s Safety Officer will also document any specific 

measures or activities, such as reviews, observations, or audits, that will be conducted to monitor 

the effectiveness of mitigations once implemented. 
 

6: Safety Assurance 
Purpose: To ensure the implementation and effectiveness of the mitigation strategy, and to 

ensure Link Transit meets or exceeds its safety objectives.  Like Safety Risk Management, 

Safety assurance will collect, analyze, and assess information gathered from line employees all 

the way up to the Board.  This information will be the basis for informed decision making. 

 

130



 

9 
 

 

Setting of Safety Objectives: 

Yearly the board of directors will set safety objectives for Link Transit for the following year.  

The Administrative Services Manager will set the safety performance indicators (SPI) and Safety 

performance targets (SPT).  The board will then approve the indicators and targets.   

Practical Drift 

Practical Drift- the slow and inconspicuous, yet steady, uncoupling between written procedures 

and the actual practices during provision of services. 

When work practices (training, policies, and procedures) are selected to mitigate a hazard it is 

imperative to keep practical drift to a minimum.  If practical drift gets too far away from the 

work practice, the work practice is no longer a viable option as a mitigation strategy. 

To ensure practical drift does not negate the mitigation strategy Link Transit will do the 

following procedures: 

1. Once a new work practice is finalized, the practice will be handed out to the affected 

employees and if needed, training on the work practice will be given. 

2. The work practice will go into effect. 

3. The direct Supervisors of the affected employees will oversee the implementation and 

continued use with the work practice. 

4. The Safety Officer will conduct an audit and check for practical drift after 3 months, 6 

months, 1 year, and randomly after 1 year of the work practice being implemented. 

5. If too much practical drift is found there will be re-training for the affected employees or 

another mitigation strategy will be selected. 

 

Safety Performance Monitoring and Measurements 

Link Transit has many processes in place to monitor its entire transit system for compliance with 

safety procedures, including 

• Safety audits 

• Informal inspections 

• Safety surveys 

• Investigation of events 

• Data gathering 

• Vehicle inspections and preventative maintenance 

Results from the above processes are compared against previous data at least quarterly by the 

Safety Officer to determine if mitigations are effective.  If the mitigations are found to be 

ineffective then the hazard will go back through the Safety Risk Management process.  

 

Link Transit will monitor risk mitigations to be sure the mitigations are effective, appropriate, 

and working as intended.  Safety risk mitigations will be tracked through the Safety Risk 

Register.  Monitoring of the mitigation strategies will vary depending on the strategy chosen. 

 

 

 

 

131



10 

Safety Investigations 

Link Transit will follow documented procedures and best practices for conducting Safety (events 

and on the job injury) investigations to find the root cause as well as contributing factors.  The 

investigation will also look at relevant mitigation strategies, policies, and procedures to see if 

they are effective or contributed to the event.   

Event investigation reviews will be conducted by the Safety Officer and the Administrative 

Services Manager.  The review process will look at: 

• The Chargeability determination

• What retraining if any may be required

• Casual factors that may indicate a safety hazard contributed to or was present during the

event

• Whether an underlying organizational causal factors beyond just individual employee

behavior.

 Internal safety reporting monitoring 

The Safety Officer will routinely gather and review safety data captured in the safety reporting 

program. Data gathered includes: customer complaints, near-miss reports, employee safety 

suggestions, including assaults on transit workers, near-misses, unsafe acts, and any other 

channel of communications.  The Safety Officer will investigate and analyze the information.  

The information will then be presented to the Safety Committee and the Administrative Services 

Manager.  The Board will also receive a report of the aggregate information. 

7: Safety Promotion 
Purpose:  To ensure proper training for all employees of Link Transit based on their roles within 

the organization and impacts on safety.  Safety promotion also ensures that safety related 

information is communicated throughout the organization.  

Training: All employees will receive safety related training depending on their roles and 

responsibilities within the organization. 

All employees: will receive basic training on Safety Management System (SMS), hazard 

identification, hazard analysis, and hazard mitigation.  They will also receive training on the 

safety reporting program. 

Supervisors: Will receive advanced training on SMS principles, hazard analysis, and hazard 

mitigation.  Supervisors will also receive training in report writing, investigations for both events 

and injuries. 

Management & Board of Directors: will receive advanced training on SMS principles, hazard 

analysis, and hazard mitigation.  Management will also receive training in recognizing and 

setting safety performance targets and goals. 

132



 

11 
 

Administrative Services Manager: will be required to take Principles of SMS class through 

Transportation Safety Institute (TSI).  

 

Any employee that has received the advanced SMS training class will need to take an annual 

refresher course.  This refresher course will cover updated information, allow employees to 

discuss and share lessons learned, as well as talk about how the process is working.  Other 

refresher training will be on as needed basis.  Coach operators will receive quarterly safety 

related training along with job specific training.  The Coach Operators quarterly training will be 

based around data that is being collected to help inform the operators of current hazards and 

mitigate the risks associated with the data.   

 

Communication of safety information 

Link Transit will communicate safety performance information and provide status updates on 

current safety mitigations using the ICN.  Safety reports (events, on the job injuries, safety 

committee minutes) will be posted in a location that is easily accessible and every employee has 

access to.  Quarterly safety goals will be shared during team link meetings held once a quarter.  

Employees who turn in safety suggestions will receive a follow up email in regards to their 

suggestion per the safety reporting program (appendix A). 

During training all employees will receive policies and procedures for their roles and 

responsibilities. Employees will receive a memo on any new or emerging policies or changes 

made in relation to safety.  The information will also be put on the ICN and communicated by 

supervisors in either a one-on-one or group setting. 

8: Additional Information 

Link Transit will maintain documentation related to the implementation of its SMS; the 

programs, policies, and procedures used to carry out this ASP; and the results from its SMS 

processes and activities for three years after creation. They will be available to the FTA or other 

Federal or oversight entity upon request. 

9: Infectious Disease Exposure 

Link Transit monitors information received from federal, state and local government agencies regarding 

the spread of communicable disease in our service area.  Link Transit is committed to following the 

directives given by these government agencies and will review any recommendations given for 

application to our service.  Link Transit will provide the resources necessary to respond to a pandemic 

and will educate Link Transit employees and users of our system on how Link Transit is responding to 

the pandemic.  Any questions regarding Link Transit’s response to a pandemic should be directed to Link 

Transit’s Safety Officer. 

133



 

12 
 

Appendix 
 

 

 

 

Appendix A Safety Reporting Program 

Appendix B Site Safety Inspection Form 

Appendix C Hazard Analysis Form 

Appendix D Safety Analysis Matrix 

 

134



 

A-1 
 

 

Employee Safety Reporting Program 

 

Purpose: 

Every employee has a different outlook on the same situation based on their job, experience, and 

training.  Link Transit wants to harness that experience and training to make a safer environment 

for our employees and guests.  This program consists of two policies: near miss reporting and 

safety suggestions.  The near miss policy is to help track near misses and identify potential 

hazards before they become events. Safety suggestion policy allows employees to address safety 

concerns, including assaults on transit workers, near-misses, and unsafe acts based on their 

experience and training.  This program is separate from any event or complaint program, policy, 

or investigation. 

What to report:   

• Hazards- Any real or potential condition that can cause injury, illness, or death; damage 

to or loss of the facilities, equipment, rolling stock, or infrastructure of a public 

transportation system; damage to the environment; or reduction of ability to perform a 

prescribed function. 

• Near misses- Safety event where condition with potential to generate an accident, 

incident, or occurrence existed, but where an accident, incident, or occurrence did not 

occur because the conditions were contained by chance or by existing safety risk 

mitigations. 

Near Miss Reporting 

Policy: 

1. Reporting of hazards and near misses will not result in disciplinary action unless the 

reported near miss is listed in the Disciplinary Action section of the program. 

2. When a report of a near miss is made, the information is logged on a “Near Miss” report 

form and forwarded to the safety officer for tracking purposes. 

3. Employees will be encouraged to self-report this information.  This is a voluntary 

program.  Employees will not be required to fill out the form and their name is optional. 

4. Dispatchers/Supervisors should fill out a form when information is received via the radio.  

However, dispatchers/supervisors may ask follow-up questions at the end of shift, only 

for the purposes of obtaining enough information to ascertain accuracy/completeness to 

the extent possible. 

5. The near miss report WILL NEVER be placed in a supervisor or personnel file with the 

exception of any disciplinary action taken from reporting a near missed that is listed in 

the Disciplinary Action section of the program. 

135



 

A-2 
 

6. The near miss data WILL NOT be provided to WSTIP for any individual. Aggregate 

information may be shared to determine the effectiveness of the program. 

7. The near miss data will be logged and kept in a completely separate database. 

8. Supervisors will not be given near miss information on any individual.  Only aggregate 

information will be disseminated. 

9. Supervisors will be instructed to not bring up any near miss information with operators.  

The operator must feel free to report the information with an understanding that it will 

not be held against them. 

10. The program is meant to gather aggregate information, not individual information, so that 

training resources can be directed to a situation before an event happens.   

11. This program will not replace any current policies, procedures, training programs, 

classes, etc.  It is meant to augment all current practices in place. 

12. The following form should be used to gather near miss data for any kind of situation 

where an accident, whether vehicle (damage), passenger/pedestrian (injury) or OJI could 

occur or almost occurred.  

13.  The Digital Recording System (DRS) will not be used to gather additional information 

about the near miss reports unless there is a complaint/event associated with the near 

miss.  

Disciplinary action will be taken 

As a result of a complaint or event investigation an employee may receive Disciplinary action in 

accordance with that program or policy.  Reporting one of the following actions will result in the 

loss of protections provided by the Employee Safety Reporting Program and receive disciplinary 

action up to and including termination. 

1. Any violation of the Drug and Alcohol policy 

2. Use of electronic devices while operating a vehicle 

Safety Suggestions 

Policy: 

1. Employees are encouraged to report safety concerns.   

2. Employees will not be required to fill out the form and their name is optional. 

3. All safety suggestions will be reviewed by the safety committee. 

4. The employee may be asked to assist with the implementation or evaluation of the hazard 

mitigation strategy used.  

5. All suggestions will be mitigated to the lowest practical level. 

6. Some suggestions may already be at the lowest practical level.  If this is the case the 

suggestion will be logged and tracked for future evaluation. 

 

136



 

A-3 
 

Near miss/safety suggestion procedures: 

1. When an employee has a near miss/safety suggestion the appropriate form will be filled 

out by the employee or by the employee who is receiving the information, for 

documentation and tracking purposes. 

2. The form will be turned in to the safety suggestion box or to the safety officer. 

3. The safety suggestion box will be checked weekly. 

4. Received suggestions and near misses will be assigned a number for tracking purposes. 

5. If completing a safety suggestion form follow (a) if a near miss form follow (b). 

a. (safety suggestion) Once the suggestion has been reviewed you will receive an email 

notifying you of the status and the course of action to be taken with the suggestion. 

b. (Near miss) A near miss will be recorded in the near miss log as data. 

6. You will be notified by email once a determination has been made. 

7. The employee will also receive a notification when the safety mitigation is in place. 

8. A review of the safety measure will be conducted within 6 months of the measure that 

was implemented.  The review will look at its effectiveness of controlling the hazard. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

137



 

A-4 
 

As part of our training, we introduce employees to the Heinrich ratio. Dr. Heinrich, while 

working in the insurance industry, developed this model in the 1930’s.  His ratio states for every 

300 near misses, an organization experiences one (1) major accident/injury/death. Below is a 

diagram of that model. 

 

This model has been the basis of accident prevention for decades.  In its simplest form, the 

model strongly suggests that by reducing the number of near misses, an agency will reduce the 

number of major accidents/injuries or deaths.  With this model in mind, transit agencies have 

historically trained in accident prevention, defensive driving and reactive accident investigation 

as a means to reduce near misses, thus reducing accidents. 

Although accidents will happen, we must also realize these events are not only costly in terms of 

lost tax payer dollars, but also time consuming to process and investigate and many times come 

with emotional distress for all parties involved.  

In recent years, there has been a greater effort to expand the use of the model by employing 

procedures and policies that proactively gather near miss data before an event ever happens.  In 

this manner, an agency can devote resources to an at risk situation prior to an event instead of 

devoting the same or, in most cases, even more resources after the event.  

In some ways, Link Transit already experiences the informal gathering of near miss data.  For 

years, operators have been reporting near miss information via the radio.  Additionally, 

employees report situations where a danger exists that could create a personal injury.  And, some 

events that are formally recorded via an accident form are processed as a non-qualifying event.  

Clearly, these instances are near misses, as no claim of damage or injury occurred.  What this 

policy aims to do is to expand and formalize an already informal system. 

Once an employee has recognized a hazard, near miss event, or  the employee will fill out the 

hazard/near miss identification form.  Once complete the employee will turn in the form to the 

safety suggestion box or to the Safety Officer.  Once the form is received the employee will 

receive an email confirming it has been received.  The employee will receive a final email once a 

decision has been made and the action been completed.

138



Site Safety Inspection Form 

B-1 
 

 

LINK TRANSIT  Safety & Security Audit 
 

 
Date:_____________ 

   

Location/Site:__________________________ Exterior & 

Grounds 

Building 

Interior 

Audit Conducted 

by:________________________________________ 

Grade                          

S=Satisfactory  

N=Item 

Noted 

Grade                          

S=Satisfactory  

N=Item 

Noted 

A. General Housekeeping     

B. Building Condition     

1.    Visible Cracks     

2.    Missing or Damaged Items     

3.    Other     

C. Personal Protective Equipment     

1.    Is PPE present & being used?     

2.    Head, Eye & Face, Ear, Hand/Arm, Foot, Other     

3.    Is PPE in Good condition?     

4.    Eyewash Stations are Clean & Working     

5.    Emergency Showers are clean and working 

properly 

    

6.    Other     

D. Sanitation & Hygiene     

1.    Eating areas clean     

2.    Restrooms clean & stocked     

3.    Evidence of pests     

139



Site Safety Inspection Form 

B-2

4. Garbage & waste bins in good condition and

not overflowing

5. Proper Drainage

6. Free from scraps & debris

7. Other

E. Flammable & Combustibles

1. Flammables stored in covered metal containers

2. Fire Extinguishers inspected, charged & rated

3. Fire Extinguishers free from obstructions

4. Other

F. Hand & Power Tools

1. Tools in good condition

2. Tools stored in dry, secure location

3. Other

G. Electrical

1. Equipment properly grounded

2. Extension cords grounded

3. Insulation in good condition, not frayed or

deteriorated

4. No splices

5. No shorting or shock hazards

6. Other

H. Walkways

1. Pedestrian Travel Areas

140



Site Safety Inspection Form 

B-3 
 

          a.  Free of trip hazards, well lit     

2.    Vehicle Travel Areas     

          a.    Posted Speed Limit, well lit, striping is 

visible 

    

3.   Parking Lots     

          a. No major potholes, well lit, no trip hazards, 

striping is visible 

    

          b. Walkways dry and slip resistant     

          c. Passageways clear     

          d. Marked appropriately     

          e. Other     

I. Working surfaces     

1.    Work Surfaces clean & sanitary     

2.    Other     

J. Stairs & Stairways     

1.   Handrails on stairways with four or more risers     

2.    Handrails in good condition     

3.   Stair surfaces in good condition and slip 

resistant 

    

4.   Other     

K. Elevated Surfaces     

1.    Adequate headroom where necessary     

2.    Other     

L. Hazard Communication     

1.    SDS sheets readily available     

141



Site Safety Inspection Form 

B-4

2. Containers properly labeled with product

identity and warnings

3. Other

M. Egress

1. Passageways well lit

2. Passageways free from debris

3. Exit signs lit and visible

4. Other

N. Machine Guarding

1. Major moving parts on fixed machinery guarded

2. Safeguards ensure no objects will fall into

moving  parts

3. Other

O. Security

1. Fencing is in good condition, no holes, damage,

or missing items, footholds

2. Gates operate properly, good condition, no

missing items, hazard signs posted.

3. Cameras appear to be working, no obstructions.

4. Signage--condition & visibility

5. Landscaping--Hideout areas

6. Approaches via utility vaults/storm drains

7. Lighting

8. Motion Detectors

9. Reception Protection

10. Duress Signaling

142



Site Safety Inspection Form 

B-5

Comments/Items to be Mitigated: 

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

11. ADA--in Bldg/Interior design

12. Elevators

13. Temporary Construction Areas--secured,

marked

14. Locks--operational

15. Utilities-Power Shutoff secured

16. Other

143



Job Hazard Analysis 

Job: 
. 

Department or 
location: 

Task or Step Hazards Controls 
Personal Protective 
Equipment (PPE) 

144



C-2

Instructions: 

Use this basic form “as is” to identify hazards, controls, and PPE at the job task (or step) level.  You can modify the form 

to meet any additional needs of your workplace. JHA hazard information can be used to develop separate safe work 

procedures for employee use. 

Job: You need to first select a job (or main activity) to observe and analyze. 

Tasks or Steps: List tasks or steps that are part of the job you selected in the “Task” column.  

Example: “Operating a table saw” would be the job while “Installing a blade” and “Ripping” would be separate tasks. 

Hazards: Any real or potential condition that can cause injury, illness, or death; damage to or loss of the facilities, equipment, rolling 

stock, or infrastructure of a public transportation system; damage to the environment; or reduction of ability to perform a prescribed 

function. 

Examples of hazards include: working at heights, slippery surfaces, exposed moving machinery parts, fire, explosion, 

noise, electricity, toxic emissions, corrosive chemicals, low oxygen, repetitive tasks, heavy lifting, infectious 

Bloodborne pathogens, assault, and homicide.  

Examples of how injuries can occur: work at height can result in falls that can result in broken bones, paralysis, or 

death; noise exposure can cause permanent and severe ringing in the ears and hearing loss; exposure to corrosive 

chemicals can cause permanent skin damage and blindness; and working in low oxygen areas can lead to sudden 

suffocation, unconsciousness, and death. 

Controls: Note how you will eliminate or minimize the hazard. This doesn’t include PPE. 

Examples of controls include: Using a safer tool or equipment or chemical, adding safeguards to machinery, using 

safer work practices, using local exhaust ventilation for toxic emissions, and enclosing noisy equipment or moving 

workers away from such equipment to reduce exposure levels.  

PPE (Personal Protective Equipment): Detail what type of PPE is needed for each hazard that can’t be eliminated or 

minimized using controls. 

145



Safety Analysis Matrix 

D-1 
 

 

 

 

 

146



Page 1 of 1 Resolution 2025-21 Link Transit 

RESOLUTION 2025-21 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING LINK TRANSIT’S UPDATED PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
AGENCY SAFETY PLAN (PTASP) 

WHEREAS; in accordance with the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements, 
all recipients of federal grant funds must establish and maintain a Public Transportation Agency 
Safey Plan (PTASP) that meets the requirements of 49 CFR Part 673, and review and update it 
annually or as necessary to ensure compliance; and 

WHEREAS, Link Transit’s PTASP has been updated to incorporate the Agency’s 2026 
Safety Performance Targets (SPTs), reflecting anticipated increases in revenue miles and 
ensuring that the Agency’s safety performance goals remain accurate, data-driven, and aligned 
with federal requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the updated PTASP continues to provide Link Transit with a comprehensive 
framework for implementing a Safety Management System (SMS) that ensures a proactive, 
data-driven approach to hazard identification, risk management, and continuous safety 
improvement across all modes of service, including fixed-route and demand-response 
operations; and 

WHEREAS, approval of the updated PTASP by the Link Transit Board of Directors is 
required under federal law to maintain compliance with FTA regulations and ensure continued 
eligibility for federal funding; and 

WHEREAS, the updated PTASP will enable Link Transit to continue providing safe, 
reliable and efficient public transportation services to the residents of Chelan and Douglas 
Counties, while fostering a culture of safety among all employees and system users. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Link Transit hereby 
approves the attached Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan, incorporating the 2026 Safety 
Performance Targets. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution supersedes and replaces any prior 
resolutions or parts of resolutions that are inconsistent with the provisions set forth herein. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Link Transit at a properly convened meeting 
thereof held on the 21st day of October 2025. 

CHELAN-DOUGLAS PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA AUTHORITY 

By Board Chair Loyd Smith 

The undersigned certifies that the foregoing Resolution was passed by the affirmative vote of _______ 
voting Board members of the Link Transit Board of Directors at a properly convened meeting of the Board 
at which a quorum of ______ voting and ______ non-voting Board members were present. 

Selina Danko, Clerk of the Board 

147



1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
October 21, 2025, Board Meeting 

STAFF REPORT SUMMARY  

TO: Link Transit Board of Directors   

FROM: Chris Clark, Rideshare Coordinator 

SUBJECT: Surplus Van Grant   

Issue / Purpose 

Link Transit’s Surplus Van Grant program is designed to offer nonprofit organizations the chance to 
apply for a surplus vehicle to address transportation needs. Link Transit received 10 responsive 
applications for five vehicles currently eligible for distribution. Staff have identified four nonprofit 
organizations from the slate of applicants to receive the remainder of the current surplus van fleet once 
the vehicles are ready for distribution. 

Selected Grantees: 
1. Brave Warriors NCW, a nonprofit organization supporting children, youth and adults with

disabilities and chronic medical conditions, as well as their families, will receive a 14-passenger
vehicle.

2. Tierra Learning Center, a nonprofit organization supporting adults with intellectual and
developmental disabilities, will receive a 14-passenger vehicle.

3. Lake Wenatchee Fire and Rescue, a Government Special District supporting senior and
housebound populations in isolated communities, will receive a six-passenger minivan

4. Chelan Senior Center, a nonprofit organization supporting seniors in the Lake Chelan area, will
receive a 14-passenger vehicle.

5. Purpose Boxing Club, a nonprofit supporting at-risk youth and adults in the Chelan-Douglas
Transportation Benefit Area, will receive a six-passenger minivan.

Four other grantees are selected to receive 14-passenger surplus vehicles as they become available in 
the future: 

6. The Lake Chelan Valley Boys and Girls Club, a nonprofit organization supporting youth in the
Lake Chelan area.

7. Garden Terrace, a nonprofit organization providing affordable housing and supporting services
for seniors in North Central Washington.

8. Chelan Valley Hope, a nonprofit organization supporting under-resourced families and
individuals in the Greater Chelan Valley.

9. Wenatchee Valley Devo Mountain Bike Team, a nonprofit organization supporting 5th- through
12th-grade youth in North Central Washington.

Background 

The purpose of the Surplus Van Grant Program is to advance the mission of Link Transit to provide safe, 
reliable, and efficient transportation services to the Chelan-Douglas Transportation Benefit Area. The 
Surplus Van Grant Program enables community organizations and non-profit entities to enhance 

148



2 

transportation capabilities by utilizing surplus vans that are no longer needed by Link Transit. This 
program aims to promote community development, improve access to essential services, and strengthen 
the overall well-being of the communities in the Chelan-Douglas Transportation Benefit Area. 

Anticipated Follow-up 

Vehicle recipient organizations are required to report ridership numbers for one year after receiving one 
of the vans. Grantees will pick up the awarded vehicles at Link Transit’s operations facility.  

149



SURPLUS VAN GRANT - 
RECOMMENDATIONS

Link Transit Board of Directors

October 21, 2025

150



2

What is a Surplus Van Grant Program? 

Surplus Van Grant Program

▪ A transit agency grants retired 
vehicles to nonprofit or community 
organizations 

▪ Competitive review and award 
process 

▪ Designed to meet unmet local 
transportation needs

Café 2024

151



3

Retired and Soon to be Retired Vehicles 

Immediately Available:

▪ Three (3) 14-passenger

▪ Two (2) six passenger minivans 

Available Soon:

▪ Four (4) 14-passenger

        Thrive 2024 

152



4

Applicants and Recommendations
▪ 10 agencies in Chelan Douglas counties applied

▪ 9 agencies selected for recommendation

▪ Immediately available

▪ Lake Wenatchee Fire and Rescue - Minivan

▪ Tierra Learning Center - 14-passenger 

▪ The Brave Warrior Project - 14-passenger

▪ Purpose Boxing - Minivan

▪ Chelan Senior Center - 14-passenger

▪ Available soon

▪ Chelan Valley Hope - 14-passenger

▪ Lake Chelan Boys and Girls Club - 14 passenger

▪ Garden Terrace - 14 passenger

▪ Wenatchee Valley Devo Mountain Bike Team -14 passenger                                      Wenatchee Rescue 2024

153



5

Once Awarded

▪ Title is signed over to grantee immediately 

▪ Grantee must provide Insurance 

▪ Quarterly ridership reporting must be provided to Link Transit for the duration of one year 

     Pinnacles Prep 2024

154



155



AGENDA ITEM: Monthly Financial Report for September 2025

Background Information:

2025 Sales Tax: 
♦ September 2025 sales tax (earned in the month of July 2025)
♦ Under budgeted amount for the month by -4%
♦ YTD sales tax collection
♦ YTD budget amount
♦ Over YTD budgeted amount by 4.2%
♦ Last year’s YTD sales tax amount
♦ Over last year’s YTD sales tax amount by 6.8%

2025 Operating Budget-to-Actual:
♦ Budget year elapsed = 75%
♦ Operating budget spent = 73%
♦ <Over> Under Budgeted Amount

2025 Capital:
♦ Bus Garage Project - RH2 Engineering
♦ Fire System Upgrade - Axe Fire & Security
♦ Model 1 Commercial - Six (6) Paratransit Cutaways

Cash Accounts:
♦ Cash w/Treasurer – 2025 over 2024
♦ Investments – 2025 over 2024
♦ Contingencies Reserve – 2025 over 2024
♦ Vehicle Reserves – 2025 under 2024
♦ FTA Vehicle Reserves – 2025 under 2024
♦ Facility/Equipment Reserves – 2025 under 2024
♦ Sales Tax Refund Reserve – 2025 under 2024

Submitted By: 

Attachments: Revenues: Expenses:
♦ Sales Tax Collections ♦ Operating Budget vs Actual
♦ Sales by Area ♦ Capital Budget vs Actual
♦ Grant Report ♦ Reserved Funds

♦ Statement of Net Position

Paden Osterlund and Justin Brockwell

487,500$  
(40,811)$  

‐$  
(8,641,182)$                 

‐$  

3,147,026$                  

15,733,792$                
1,077,584$                  

22,327,945$                
21,807,995$                

519,950$  

30,536$  
768,162$  

646,764$  

29,927$  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

October 21, 2025
Board Meeting

2,562,410$                  
(106,693)$  

16,811,377$                
16,141,212$                

670,164$  

156



Link Transit
2025 Operating Revenue Budget vs Actual
As of September 30, 2025
 

2025 CURRENT CURRENT
  2025 BUDGET YTD Over MONTH MONTH Over

Revenue Source BUDGET YTD ACTUAL (Under) BUDGET * ACTUAL (Under)
Sales Tax * 29,740,932$      22,305,699$      16,811,377$      (5,494,322)$        2,669,103$     2,562,410$   (106,693)$         
Federal Grants 3,820,578 2,865,434          -                         (2,865,434)          318,382 -                   (318,382)           
WSDOT Operating Grants 4,462,284 3,346,713          2,111,370          (1,235,344)          371,857 -                   (371,857)           
Interest Income 500,000 375,000             783,699             408,699               41,667 14,728          (26,939)             
Leases 12,000 9,000                 8,476                 (524)                    1,000 1,000            -                        
Other/Non-Transportation 107,500 80,625               116,261             35,636                 8,958 170               (8,788)               
Fares 20,000               15,000               39,445               24,445                 1,667              6,087            4,421                

38,663,294$      28,997,471$      19,870,628$      (9,126,843)$        3,412,633$     2,584,395$   (828,238)$         

* Sales Tax is received two (2) months after it has been earned.

  

Sales Tax *
77%

Federal Grants
10%

WSDOT Operating Grants
12%

WSDOT Grants
6% Leases

0%
Other/Non‐Transportation 

Fares
0%

Revenues

157



Link Transit's Operating & Capital Grants
As of September 30, 2025

Grant Programs Amount Awarded Reimb
Balance     

Outstanding
Current Amount 

Due Project

Federal Operating Grants:  
2025 - 5307 Formula Grant 3,815,519$       -$                      3,815,519$       -$                  Operating Expenses
   Total Direct Recipient Grants 3,815,519$       -$                      3,815,519$       -$                  

WSDOT Grants Awarded for the time period of July 2023 - June 2025
Federal Operating Grants:  Passed Through the WSDOT
5311 Federal Grant 106,000$          106,000$               -$                  -$                  Leavenworth DART
5311 Federal Grant 218,913            218,913                 -                    -                    Chelan-Manson DART
5310 Federal Grant 212,000            212,000                 -                    -                    Mobility Management
5311 Federal Grant 1,300,000         1,300,000              -                    -                    FR Rural Commuter                     
  Total Federal Grants: WSDOT 1,836,913$       1,836,913$            -$                  -$                  

State Operating Grants  
Special Needs Grant  2,882,905$       2,882,905$            -$                  -$                  Paratransit/Special Needs
Transit Support Grant 3,571,907         3,571,907              -                    -                    Paratransit/FR Commuter
TRIP-Link Grant 142,500            142,500                 -                    -                    TRIP-Link Program
  Total State Grants 6,597,312$       6,597,312$            -$                  -$                  

WSDOT Grants Awarded for the time period of July 2025 - June 2027
Federal Operating Grants:  Passed Through the WSDOT
5311 Federal Grant 112,500$          -$                      112,500$          14,063$            Leavenworth DART
5311 Federal Grant 482,500            -                        482,500            60,313$            Chelan-Manson DART
5310 Federal Grant 240,000            -                        240,000            30,000$            Mobility Management
5311 Federal Grant 1,550,000         -                        1,550,000         193,750$          FR Rural Commuter                     
5311 Federal Grant 52,000              -                        52,000              6,500$              SkiLink Seasonal Service
  Total Federal Grants: WSDOT 2,437,000$       -$                      2,437,000$       304,625$          

State Operating Grants  
Special Needs Grant  3,069,931$       -$                      3,069,931$       383,741$          Paratransit/Special Needs
Transit Support Grant 3,524,336         -                        3,524,336         440,542            Paratransit/FR Commuter
TRIP-Link Grant 192,600            -                        192,600            24,075              TRIP-Link Program
  Total State Grants 6,786,867$       -$                      6,786,867$       848,358$          

   Total Operating Grants 21,473,611$     8,434,225$            13,039,386$     1,152,983$       

 

Capital Grants Amount Awarded Reimb
Balance     

Outstanding
Current Amount 

Due

Green Transportation Grant 2023-25 5,942,718$       5,942,718$            -$                  -$                  Nine (9) Ride Buses
FY24 Low-No Grant 4,462,500         -                            4,462,500         -                    Five (5) Ride Buses
Green Transportation Grant 2025-27 4,568,750         -                            4,568,750         -                    Four (4) Ride Buses/Charging Infrastructure
   Total Capital Grants 14,973,968$     5,942,718$            9,031,250$       -$                      

158



As of September 30, 2025
For Sales Tax Collected in July 2025

  Actual - vs -

Sales Collection Actual  Budget Actual

Month Month 2024 2025 2025 over <under> Percentage over <under> Percentage
January March 1,674,065$    1,717,414$    2,283,120$    609,055$         36.4% 565,706$        32.9%
February April 1,917,648      1,967,305      1,744,952      (172,696)         -9.0% (222,353) -11.3%
March May 2,122,634      2,177,599      2,439,217      316,583           14.9% 261,618 12.0%
April June 2,226,924      2,284,589      2,316,590      89,666             4.0% 32,000            1.4%
May July 2,631,248      2,699,383      2,746,917      115,669           4.4% 47,534            1.8%

June August 2,559,542      2,625,820      2,718,172      158,630           6.2% 92,352            3.5%

July September 2,601,732      2,669,103      2,562,410      (39,323)           -1.5% (106,693)         -4.0%

  Actual - vs -

Sales Collection Actual  Budget Actual

Month Month 2024 2025 2025 over <under> Percentage over <under> Percentage

January March 1,674,065$    1,717,414$    2,283,120$    609,055$         36.4% 565,706$        32.9%
February April       3,591,713        3,684,719       4,028,072            436,359 12.1%           343,353 9.3%

March May       5,714,347        5,862,317       6,467,289            752,942 13.2%           604,972 10.3%

April June       7,941,271        8,146,907       8,783,879            842,608 10.6%           636,972 7.8%

May July     10,572,518      10,846,290     11,530,795            958,277 9.1%           684,506 6.3%

June August     13,132,060      13,472,109     14,248,967         1,116,907 8.5%           776,858 5.8%

July September     15,733,792      16,141,212     16,811,377         1,077,584 6.8%           670,164 4.2%

2024-vs-2025 Budget

YEAR TO DATE COLLECTION COMPARISONS

MONTHLY COLLECTION COMPARISONS

2025 Sales Tax Collections
Link Transit

2024-vs-2025

Actual

Budget

Actual

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

18,000,000

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

11,428,382  

13,381,482  
12,856,216  

15,733,793  
16,811,377  

YTD Sales Tax Comparison 
2021 - 2025

159



Link Transit
Sales Tax Comparison for September 2025
Earned in the Month of July 2025

Month - to - Date % Year-to-Date Year-to-Date %
Location Jul-25 Jul-24 Diff Change 2025 2024 Diff Change

Unincorporated-Chelan County 608,943       518,774$     90,169$     17% 3,597,062$      2,883,405$     713,657$       25%

Cashmere 51,083        45,522         5,562         12% 280,962           273,524          7,438             3%

Chelan(City) 255,157      250,837       4,320         2% 1,072,875        1,138,157       (65,282)          -6%

Entiat 11,823        12,160         (338)           -3% 69,352             82,490            (13,138)          -16%

Leavenworth 218,394      212,081       6,312         3% 1,156,608        1,032,248       124,360         12%

Wenatchee 858,428      796,680       61,747       8% 5,489,204        5,109,924       379,281         7%

East Wenatchee 320,873       343,014       (22,141)      -6% 1,994,416        2,073,962       (79,546)          -4%

Rock Island 11,510        11,384         125            1% 72,311             70,265            2,047             3%

Waterville 9,332          11,982         (2,650)        -22% 56,334             60,545            (4,211)            -7%

Unincorporated-Douglas County 216,868       399,298       (182,431)    -46% 3,022,251        3,009,274       12,977           0%

     Totals 2,562,410$ 2,601,732$   (39,323)$    -2% 16,811,377$    15,733,794$   1,077,584$    7%

% %
Category Jul-25 Jul-24 Diff Change 2025 2024 Diff Change

Accommodation & Food Svcs 324,410$    313,592$     10,818$     3% 1,619,390$      1,571,065$     48,325$         3%
Admin. Supp. Remed Svcs 118,464      119,127       (663)           -1% 710,364           637,783          72,581           11%
Agriculture (167)            2,130           (2,297)        -108% 13,449             17,674            (4,225)            -24%
Arts Entertain. Recreation 42,062        37,070         4,992         13% 224,434           198,511          25,923           13%
Company Mgn 294             1,679           (1,386)        -83% 2,059               3,670              (1,611)            -44%
Construction 645,093      567,955       77,138       14% 4,399,922        3,689,100       710,822         19%
Education Services 2,657          2,504           153            6% 14,179             12,429            1,750             14%
Finance and Insurance 10,634        9,414           1,221         13% 62,608             (124,888)         187,496         -150%
Health Care 13,097        11,481         1,616         14% 95,278             100,662          (5,384)            -5%
Information 88,526        41,533         46,994       113% 373,227           662,413          (289,185)        -44%
Manufacturing 69,933        63,612         6,320         10% 405,947           403,945          2,002             0%
Mining 351             3,405           (3,055)        -90% 1,949               4,774              (2,825)            -59%
Other Services 49,455        43,262         6,193         14% 330,157           300,486          29,670           10%
Prof. Sci Technical Svcs 64,748        45,762         18,986       41% 445,275           379,869          65,405           17%
Public Administrattion 12,111        11,384         728            6% 23,179             15,173            8,006             53%
Real Estate 87,634        97,210         (9,576)        -10% 398,351           338,377          59,974           18%
Retail Trade 1,074,641   1,023,210    51,432       5% 6,256,737        5,935,752       320,985         5%
Transporting/Warehousing 17,296        23,224         (5,928)        -26% 94,813             108,331          (13,518)          -12%
Unknown (289,020)     10,207         (299,229)    -2932% (31,558)            256,970          (288,527)        -112%
Utilities 3,032          4,347           (1,315)        -30% 22,826             35,748            (12,922)          -36%
Wholesale Trade 227,159      169,626       57,534       34% 1,348,793        1,185,950       162,843         14%

     Totals 2,562,410$ 2,601,732$  (39,323)$    -2% 16,811,377$    15,733,794$   1,077,584$    7%

160



Budget Year

75%

CURRENT CURRENT
2025 YTD MONTH MONTH  

BUDGET ACTUAL Variance BUDGET * ACTUAL % Diff
 

Operating Budget  
  Operations $ 14,765,287          $ 11,295,887      77% $ 1,230,441 $ 1,222,375      99%
  Administration 674,599              505,214            75% 56,217 57,670           103%
  Board of Directors 90,230                49,012             54% 7,519 5,595             74%
  Finance 773,569              525,774           68%  64,464 57,189           89%
  Computer Systems 1,474,054           959,093            65% 122,838 160,982         131%
  Administrative Services 1,112,722           775,045           70% 92,727 78,147           84%
  Planning 1,066,562           637,749           60% 88,880 69,107           78%
  Marketing 1,375,055           890,536           65% 114,588 124,310         108%
  Facility Maintenance 1,548,257           1,024,847         66% 129,021 102,267         79%
  Vehicle Maintenance 5,869,758           4,394,137        75% 489,147 481,582         98%
  Property/Liability 1,020,500           750,699 74% 85,042 83,411 98%

Total Operating Expenses $ 29,770,593          $ 21,807,995      73% $ 2,480,883    $ 2,442,635      98%

Link Transit
2025 Operating Budget to Actual
As of September 30, 2025

Operations
47%

Administration
2%

Board of Directors/LTAC
0%

Finance
5%

Computer Systems
4%

Administrative Services
4%

Planning
9%

Facility Maintenance
5%

Vehicle Maintenance
20%

Vehicle Maintenance
20%

Property/Liability
4%

Expenses by Department

161



Link Transit
2025 CAPITAL BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
As of September 30, 2025  

Capital Budget
 Carry Over 
from 2024 

2025 Capital 
Budget  Actual Expense 

 Remaining 
Balance  % Remaining 

Carry Over from 2024
Rock Island Park and Ride 750,000$           750,000$           -$                     750,000$           100%
Entiat Park & Ride 450,000             450,000             7,253                   442,747             98%
Hay Canyon Park & Ride Preliminary Design 45,161               45,161               15,580                 29,581               66%
Scope & Bid to Re-coat Operations Base & Columbia Station 90,791               90,791               -                       90,791               100%
Dispatch Workstations 71,430               71,430               -                       71,430               100%
Bus Garage (Phase 1) 15,000,000        15,000,000        7,410,580            7,589,420          51%

Total Carry Over from 2024 16,407,382$      16,407,382$      7,433,413$          8,973,969$        55%

Facility Maintenance Projects & Equipment:
WSP Property Training Facility -$                   1,000,000$        25,244$               974,756$           97%
Apple Blossom Center Land Acquisition -                     600,000             -                       600,000             100%
Café HVAC Improvements -                     250,000             15,296                 234,704             94%
Columbia Station Security Upgrades -                     100,000             -                       100,000             100%
Operations Facility Expansion Design -                     100,000             -                       100,000             100%
Fire System Upgrade -                     -                     30,536                 (30,536)              -100%
Bus Stop Improvements -                     500,000             26,014                 473,986             95%
Columbia Station DC Plug-in Chargers -                     80,000               62,555                 17,445               22%
Columbia Station PRV Valve Replacement -                     -                     17,641                 (17,641)              -100%

Total Facility Maintenance Projects & Equipment: -$                   2,630,000$        177,286$             2,452,714$        93%

Vehicles & Equipment:
Four (4) Electric Paratransit Cutaways -$                   500,000$           768,162$             (268,162)$          -54%
Seven (7) Rideshare Vehicles -                     315,000             -                       315,000             100%
Nine (9) 30' BYD/RIDE Buses & Three (3) DC Chargers -                     9,726,024          8,653,025            1,072,999          11%
Five (5) 30' BYD/RIDE Buses -                     5,250,000          -                           5,250,000          100%
Five (5) 300 kW DC Chargers -                     1,150,000          74,794                 1,075,206          93%
Side-by-Side with Snow Plow -                     31,000               29,396                 1,604                 5%
Tractor with Snow Blower -                     44,000               43,134                 866                    2%
Floor Sweeper/Scrubber -                     110,000             104,928               5,072                 5%
Tire Mount and Balance Machine -                     45,000               44,466                 534                    1%
Air Brake Training Board -                     29,000               28,600                 400                    1%
Three (3) Supervisor Vehicles -                     -                     110,135               (110,135)            -100%

Total Vehicles & Equipment: -$                   17,200,024$      9,856,641$          7,343,383$        43%

Total 2025 Capital Budget 16,407,382$      36,237,406$      17,467,340$        18,770,066$      52%

  

162



Link Transit

Reserved Funds Balance

For the Month Ending September 30, 2025

Annual FTA Facility & Sales Tax
Transfers Contingency Ownership Vehicle Equipment Refund

Beginning Balance 4,690,001$       -$                    1,814,648$              14,066,205$      1,000,000$        

Total Transfers and Grants: Annual Transfers:

  - Monthly Reserve Transfers 400,000$                  300,000            

  - Monthly Reserve Transfers 5,500,000                 4,125,000

  - Monthly Reserve Transfers 1,000,000 750,000

Add: Capital Grants 
PTD0775 - Urban Bus Fleet Electrification 5,942,718

Total Transfers and Grants 6,500,000$               300,000$          -$                    10,067,718$            750,000$           -$                   

Expenditures and Transfers: Contingency
FTA 

Ownership Vehicle
Facility & 

Equipment
Sales Tax 

Refund

Side-by-Side With Snow Plow 29,396

Tractor with Snow Blower 43,134
Floor Scrubber 104,928
Columbia Station DC Plug-in Chargers 62,555
Nine (9) BYD Bus & Chargers 8,653,025
Three (3) Supervisor Vehicles 110,135
Four (4) Paratransit Electric Cutaway 768,162
Air Brake Training Board 28,600
Tire Mount & Balance Machine 44,466
CS PRV Valve Replacement & Backflow 17,641
Bus Stop Improvements 10,776
Sanders Street Improvements 6,236
Hay Canyon Park & Ride 15,580
Valley Mall Parkway Bus Stop 930
CS Café Improvements 15,296
Electric Vehicle Chargers 74,794
WSP Property Traning Facility 25,244
Entiat Park & Ride 7,253
Easy Street Intersection 8,072
Fire System Upgrade 30,536
Bus Garage Project 7,410,580

Total Capital Expenditures -$                      -$                9,771,335$              7,696,005$        -$                   

Ending Balances 4,990,001$       -$                    2,111,031$              7,120,200$        1,000,000$        

Total Reserved Funds Available 15,221,231$     

163



Link Transit
Statement of Net Position
As of September 30, 2025

9/30/2025 9/30/2024
Current Assets:

Cash - Treasurer $ 4,549,277     $ 3,902,513     

Fare Collection 90,974          16,836          
Petty Cash 1,000            1,000            
Cash - Fare Collection Change 200               -                    
P-Card Account 500               500               
ATM Machine 27,495          28,128          
Advance Travel 3,000            3,000            

Total Cash 4,672,446     3,951,977     

Investments 12,179,076   9,032,050     
Investment-Fair Market Value (329,511)       (707,357)       

Accounts Receivable 46,876          3,146            
Grants Receivable -                    166,950        
Inventory 580,706        589,865        
Prepaid Dues 32,508          
Prepaid Insurance/Expenses 250,233        187,063        
Prepaid Fire Protection 4,843            9,579            
Prepaid Maint Agreement 36,615          26,668          
Prepaid Net Cloud Service 9,434            9,214            

Total Current Assets 17,483,227   13,269,155   

Reserved Assets:
Investments:

Designated for Contingencies 4,990,001     4,502,501     
Designated for Vehicles 2,111,031     2,151,842     
Designated for Equipment/Facilities 7,120,200     15,761,382   
Designated for FTA Vehicles -                    -                    
Designated for Sales Tax Refund 1,000,000     1,000,000     
  Total Reserved Assets 15,221,232   23,415,725   

Capital Assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 41,359,929   43,428,059   
Work in Progress 7,588,864     2,735            

Total Capital Assets 48,948,793   43,430,794   

Other Noncurrent Assets
Pension Assets 2,765,100     3,346,575     
Lease Asset - Big Belly 64,573          5,671            
Subscription Asset 1,626,673     1,415,680     

  Total Other Noncurrent Assets 4,456,346     4,767,926     

Deferred Outflow of Resources:
Asset Retirement Obligation 10,000          10,000          
Pension Outflows 3,908,897     2,913,161     

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 3,918,897     2,923,161     

TOTAL ASSETS $ 90,028,495   $ 87,806,761   

164



Liabilities & Equity
9/30/2025 9/30/2024

Current Liabilities:
Warrants Payable $ 2,044,392     $ 1,099,949     
Vouchers Payable 14,807          (2,988)           
Accrued Accounts Payable 72,721          -                    
Accrued General Leave 763,541        707,646        
Accrued Employee Benefits 479,708        506,271        
Accrued Leasehold Rental Tax 240               977               
Payroll Taxes Payable 329,606        258,753        
Accured Retainage 640,651        77,838          
Accrued Retainage Interest 1,592            
Prepaid Bus Service -                    -                    

Total Current Liabilities 4,347,257     2,648,446     

Long-Term Liabilities:   
Net Pension Liability 1,160,445     1,445,608     
Accrued General Leave -                    
Asset Retirement Liability 55,849          55,095          
Lease Liability - Big Belly 64,714          5,700            
Subscription Liability 1,743,499     1,445,608     

Total Long-Term Liabilities 3,024,506     2,952,010     

Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Pension Inflows 1,400,254     2,085,308     

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 1,400,254     2,085,308     

Total Liabilities: 8,772,018     7,685,764     

Retained Earnings/Equity:
Reserved for Contingencies 4,990,001     4,502,501     
Reserved for Equipment/Facilities 7,120,200     15,761,382   
Reserved for FTA Vehicles -                    -                    
Reserved for Vehicles 2,111,031     2,151,842     
Reserved for Sales Tax Refund 1,000,000     1,000,000     

Total Reserves 15,221,232   23,415,725   

Unreserved Retained Earnings 66,035,248   56,705,274   

Total Retained Earnings/Equity 81,256,480   80,120,999   
  

Total Equity 81,256,480   80,120,999   

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 90,028,495   $ 87,806,761   

165



Total System Boardings

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2023 2024 2025 GOAL - 112,435

166



Preventable Collisions and Incidents
Class 1 or Higher

0

1

2

3

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2023 2024 2025 GOAL - 1.33

167



Total System

Complaints

0

5

10

15

20

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2023 2024 2025 GOAL - 10

168



Total System

Commendations

0

5

10

15

20

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2024 2025

169



Total System

Cost per Service Hour

90.00

100.00

110.00

120.00

130.00

140.00

150.00

160.00

170.00

180.00

190.00

200.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2023 2024 2025 GOAL - $166.60

170



Total System

Service Hours

10,000

11,000

12,000

13,000

14,000

15,000

16,000

17,000

18,000

19,000

20,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2023 2024 2025

171



Total System

Cost per Boarding

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2023 2024 2025 BUDGETED - $22.06

172



Wenatchee-East Wenatchee 

Boardings by Route

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

1 Wen Ave 2 E. Wen 3 CWH 4 Pybus 5 Western 6 Beuzer 7 Target 8 Miller 9 So. Wen 11 E. Wen 12 F Meyer 18 Cascade

January February March April May June July August September

173



Intercity Boardings by Route

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

21 Chelan 22 Leavenworth 23 Rock Island 24 Malaga 25 Waterville 28 Cashmere 32 LW Local 122 Express 40 SkiLink

January February March April May June July August September

174



Incident Data January-September 2023-2025 
 

Definitions for Incident Types: 

Intoxication : Incident where the guest is under the influence and requires intervention by an operator 

or supervisor to inform them of policies or remove them from Link Property 

Guest Dispute : Incident where 2 or more guests are arguing with each other and requires an operator   

or suspervisor to intervene and stop the altercation. 

Disorderly Conduct : Incident where there is a direct conflict between guests and operators, any cursing 

or back and forth argument from disagreements or refusing to follow Link policies. Can also relate to 

guests ignoring the operator when they are attempting to correct policy breaking behavior. 

Denied Ride : When a operator has to deny a ride to a guest because they are currently at an unsafe 

pickup location or acting inappropriately. 

 

 

 

12
10

59

2
5

15

58

16

9

18

59

10

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Intoxication Guest Dispute Disorderly Conduct Denied Ride

January - September 2023-2025 Incident Data

Year 2023 Year 2024 Year 2025

175



1 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 
October 21, 2025  Board Meeting 

STAFF REPORT SUMMARY  

 
TO: Link Transit Board of Directors   

FROM: Lukas Meeker, Guest Services 

SUBJECT: September complaints & commendations 

 
Issue / Purpose 
 

Link Transit staff generate a summary of complaints and commendations received from Link Transit 

guests each month. The information is an important tool for Link management and members of the 

board to gauge how Link services are viewed by those depending on the system for their transportation 

needs. 
 
Background 
 

The information presented here is designed to keep the board informed about any communication from 

the public regarding the agency’s services. 
 
Anticipated Follow-up 
 

Staff will continue to compile this information and present it to the board monthly in the board packet. 

Staff are also available at any time to answer questions related to complaints and commendations from 

the public. 

176



SERVICE COMPLAINTS

September 2025
OPS-FR

Bus Late 1

Employee Attitude 1

Safe Driving: Changing Lanes 1

Safe Driving: Speed 2

Ops-FR 5

OPS-LP

Employee Behavior 1

LP-Scheduling 1

Ops-LP 2
Complaint 7

177



 ID No.

25-387
Todays Date

9/16/2025
Time Recorded

6:37:19 AM

From: Link Transit, WA <noreply@linktransit.com>
Sent: Monday, September 15, 2025 5:47 PM
To: GuestServices <GuestServices@linktransit.com>
Subject: New submission from EMPLOYEE COMMENDATION OR COMPLAINT

Is this a Commendation

Please tell us what happened Carlos is a thoughtful transit operator. He breaks softly and turns corners at appropriate speeds and goes over
speedbumps as gently as possible.

Please tell us the employees name (or describe them) Carlos

When did this happen? (Date and time) 9152025 1030
Bus 371 route 7

Lastly, can we have your name? Charlie

GUEST COMMENT RECORD

Date of Incident

9/15/2025
Time of Incident

10:30:00 AM
Route

7
Employee Name
Carlos Gutierrez

Assigned to
Ramon Cox

871
Bus #

24
Run #

Marisol Aguilar
Recorded by:

Charlie
Guest Name Telephone

OB
Direction

Email

10:30 AM
Departure Time

Route Replay
Confirmed via

Commendation
Category

Commendation
Description

Caller ID

Ops-FR
DepartmentClassification

Service

178



 ID No.

25-392
Todays Date

9/20/2025
Time Recorded

8:18:52 AM

GUEST COMMENT RECORD and Attachment

Date of Incident Time of Incident Route

Employee Name
Grant Bowen-Picard

Assigned to
Ross Miller

Bus # Run #

Marisol Aguilar
Recorded by:

Barbara LyonGuest Name Telephone

Direction

Email

Departure Time

See Attachment

I used your services on Saturday the 13th to do my monthly grocery shopping at Walmart.

I have a small grocery cart that was filled to the top and when i went to move it as the LinkPlus driver was
approaching, my front left wheel came off which made the cart scrape along the concrete: it was heavy
with groceries.
The Link Plus driver whose name was Grant, kindly bent down and managed to get the wheel back on.
Grant was so kind in helping me. He got me, my cart and my months worth of groceries home safe and
sound!! Link Plus has the kindest drivers.

I feel so blessed.

Thank you,

Barbara

179



180



 ID No.

25-403
Todays Date

9/25/2025
Time Recorded

2:22:41 PM

Phoenix would like to thank everyone at Link for always being so helpful and understanding. From dispatch
to he drivers everyone is always awesome

GUEST COMMENT RECORD

Date of Incident Time of Incident Route

Employee Name Assigned to
Management

Bus # Run #

Marisol Aguilar
Recorded by:

Phoenix Downs
Guest Name Telephone

Direction

Email

Departure Time Confirmed via

Commendation
Category

Commendation
Description

Caller ID

DepartmentClassification
Service

181



 ID No.

25-382
Todays Date

9/11/2025
Time Recorded

11:10:08 AM

Jon called in because he wanted to commend Martin for going above and beyond by not only helping him
and his son, but the other passengers that boarded the bus after him as well. Martin was very kind to him
and his son by helping them figure out the best way home from Leavenworth that night after having a bad
experience earlier.

Jon said that a couple of stops after he got on, a couple that appeared to have some mobility issues were
trying to board the bus. Martin was very kind and patient with them and helped them get on the bus and
when they told him there friend was right behind them he waited. Jon was very impressed with Martin's
kindness and professionalism. He loved how Martin showed that he really cared about the people getting
on and off the bus.

Way to go Martin!!

GUEST COMMENT RECORD

Date of Incident

9/10/2025
Time of Incident Route

32
Employee Name Assigned to

Bus # Run #

Lukas Meeker
Recorded by:

Jon Zahn
Guest Name

360-491-1250
Telephone

IB
Direction

Email

6:30 AM
Departure Time

Route Replay
Confirmed via

Commendation
Category

Employee Behavior
Description

Caller ID

Ops-FR
DepartmentClassification

Service

182



 ID No.

25-379
Todays Date

9/8/2025
Time Recorded

3:32:24 PM

-----Original Message-----
From: Link@rideralerts.com <Link@rideralerts.com>
Sent: Monday, September 08, 2025 5:40 PM
To: GuestServices <GuestServices@linktransit.com>
Cc: support@availtec.com
Subject: Feedback from InfoPoint web site

Comment:
The bus driver of bus 7, clark was super kind and helped us find our other bus, then saw we left a sippy cup behind and made
sure we got it back, such a awesome drive and my nephew loves him

Name: Aspen
Email: lanerogersthekiller@gmail.com

GUEST COMMENT RECORD

Date of Incident Time of Incident Route

Employee Name
Clark Lewis

Assigned to
Ross Miller

Bus # Run #

Recorded by:

Aspen
Guest Name Telephone

Direction

lanerogersthekiller@gmail.com
Email

Departure Time Confirmed via

Commendation
Category

Commendation
Description

Caller ID

Ops-FR
DepartmentClassification

Service

183



 ID No.

25-392
Todays Date

9/20/2025
Time Recorded

8:18:52 AM

GUEST COMMENT RECORD and Attachment

Date of Incident Time of Incident Route

Employee Name
Grant Bowen-Picard

Assigned to
Ross Miller

Bus # Run #

Marisol Aguilar
Recorded by:

Barbara LyonGuest Name Telephone

Direction

Email

Departure Time

See Attachment

I used your services on Saturday the 13th to do my monthly grocery shopping at Walmart.

I have a small grocery cart that was filled to the top and when i went to move it as the LinkPlus driver was
approaching, my front left wheel came off which made the cart scrape along the concrete: it was heavy
with groceries.
The Link Plus driver whose name was Grant, kindly bent down and managed to get the wheel back on.
Grant was so kind in helping me. He got me, my cart and my months worth of groceries home safe and
sound!! Link Plus has the kindest drivers.

I feel so blessed.

Thank you,

Barbara

184



185



 ID No.

25-403
Todays Date

9/25/2025
Time Recorded

2:22:41 PM

Phoenix would like to thank everyone at Link for always being so helpful and understanding. From dispatch
to he drivers everyone is always awesome

GUEST COMMENT RECORD

Date of Incident Time of Incident Route

Employee Name Assigned to
Management

Bus # Run #

Marisol Aguilar
Recorded by:

Phoenix Downs
Guest Name Telephone

Direction

Email

Departure Time Confirmed via

Commendation
Category

Commendation
Description

Caller ID

DepartmentClassification
Service

186


	1 Agenda
	2 Employee Recognition
	3 Budget Workshop
	3a Budget Presentation
	3b Strategic Plan Presentation
	5 Consent Agenda
	5a September 16 Board Minutes
	5b Payroll and Accounts Payable
	6.1 Agency Workplan
	6.2 CEO Evaluation Staff Report
	7.1 Commercial Tire Contract
	7.2 Chelan County Interlocal
	7.3 Bus Garage Contingency
	7.4 Bus Purchase
	7.5 Vehicle Surplus
	7.6 Hay Canyon Property Purchase
	7.7 Link Transit Agency Safety Plan Update
	8.1 Surplus Van Grant Program
	8.2 Financial Report
	8.3 Scorecards
	8.4 Incident Reports
	8.5 Complaints and Commendations



